
AGENDA OF REGULAR MEETING
Odessa College Board of Trustees
Tuesday, May 25, 2021, 6:00 PM

Saulsbury Campus Center, Zant Community Room
201 W UNIVERSITY
ODESSA, TX 79764

1. Call to Order - Mr. Tommy Clark
2. Pledge of Allegiance: United States & Texas - Mr. Tommy Clark
3. Introduce New Employees - Ms. Lindsey Bryant
4. Approval of Minutes of Regular Meeting of April 27, 2021 - Mr. Tommy Clark
5. Action Items:

A. Committee Reports
1. Property Committee - Dr. Tara Deaver

a. Report on Approval of Systech Bid
b. Consider and Approve Bid for Food Service Vendor
c. Consider and Approve Purchase of Portable Buildings
d. Request for Consent from Board of Trustees of OJCD to Sell Property for 

Less than Market Value Specified in the Judgement of Foreclosure and 
Also Less than the Amount of Judgments Against the Property.

2. Finance Committee - Mr. Gary Johnson
a. Consider and Approve Authorized Investment Business Organizations
b. Review Plan of Finance Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds
c.  Review and Approve Parameters Resolution Authorizing Issuance of 

Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds, appointing a representative of the 
District and delegating to the representative certain matters with respect 
to the sale of the Bonds and the offering documents, and enacting other 
provisions relating to the issuance and sale of the Bonds. 

B. Monthly Financial Statements & Budget Amendments - Ms. Brandy Ham
C. Recommendation for Appointment of Independent Auditors- Ms. Brandy Ham
D. Wood Health Sciences Building Naming agreements - Jacqui Gore

1. Odessa Regional Medical Center
2. Grow Odessa

E. OC Foundation Letter of Agreement - Jacqui Gore
F. Reappointment of College Attorney- Dr. Gregory Williams
G. Accept Resignation of Board Member Tommy Clark- Dr. Gregory Williams
H. Accept Resignation of Board Member Neil Grape- Dr. Gregory Williams
I. Consider and Approve Appointment of Hortencia DelBosque to the Unexpired Term, Place 2
J. Consider and Approve Appointment of Montie Garner to the Unexpired Term, Place 6
K. Reorganization of the Board- Mr. Tommy Clark

6. Informational Items:
A. Education Report - Employee of Excellence Award Winners - Ms. Kim McKay
B. Vision 2030 Update- Mr. Ken Zartner
C. Institutional Effectiveness Report - Dr. Janice Hicks
D. President's Report - Dr. Gregory Williams

1. Record Graduation May 7 and 8
2. Virtual Invasion
3. Grand Opening of the Pantry Gardens
4. Dr. Motamedi appointed to serve on the new THECB Transfer Advisory Committee

3

9
12
13
14

24
25
44

104

108

113

114
115

1



5. Aspen Prize 2021
6. Gary Johnson celebrates 30 years of serving as an Odessa College Board of Trustee

7. Adjournment - Mr. Tommy Clark

______________________________
Gregory D. Williams, Ed.D., President

EXECUTIVE/ CLOSED SESSION:  If during the course of the meeting, any discussion of any item on the agenda should 
be held in executive or closed session, the Board will convene in such executive or closed session in accordance with the 
Texas Open Meeting Act, Section §551.001 of the Texas Government Code.

2



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Odessa College Board of Trustees held Tuesday, April 27, 2021, 
in the Zant Community Room, with the following: 

   
   Present     Absent    
   Tommy Clark        
   Dr. Tara Deaver      
   Gary Johnson     

   Larry Johnson 
   J. E. “Coach” Pressly 
   Trudy Lewis 
   Bruce Shearer 

Neil Grape 
   

              
 Meeting was called to order by Board of Trustees Chair, Mr. Tommy Clark, at 6:01 p.m. 
 

 Pledge of Allegiance: United States & Texas 
 
 Mr. Clark led the group in the pledges. 

 
Introduce New Employees 
 
Ms. Lindsey Bryant, Director of Human Resources, introduced the following new employees: 
 

   Adam Webb- GED/ESL Coordinator 
   CJ Ricks- Student Support Specialist 
    

  
Approval of Minutes of Regular Meeting of March 23, 2021 

 
Mr. Gary Johnson moved, seconded by Mr. Larry Johnson, to approve the minutes of the Regular 
meeting of March 23, 2021.    

 

 Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Approval of Minutes of Special Meeting of April 15, 2021 
 
Mr. Gary Johnson moved, seconded by Ms. Trudy Lewis, to approve the minutes of the Special 
meeting of April 15, 2021.    

 
 Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 Pinning Ceremony for Campus Police Officer Leroy Flores 
 

Mr. Tommy Clark invited Officer Leroy Flores to the podium. Mr. Clark introduced Mr. Flores and 
read a brief bio.  Mr. Flores’ wife pinned Officer Flores. 

 
 Committee Reports 
 

1. Finance Committee 3



 
a. Resolution to Approve Nacero Tax Abatement 

 
Mr. Gary Johnson read the following resolution. 
 
 

RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF 

ODESSA COLLEGE 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF ECTOR  § 
 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee and the Odessa College Board of Trustees 
reviewed and considered the tax abatement request from Nacero Incorporated (“Nacero”).  
 WHEREAS, Nacero will be building and operating a gasoline manufacturing business 

in Penwell, Ector County, Texas and will be subject to applicable taxes as approved by the 
Odessa College Board of Trustees.  
 WHEREAS, Nacero has requested a ten year tax abatement from Odessa College with 
100% tax abatement for the first five years, with the abatement then declining by 10% each 
year for the final five years of the abatement period.  
 WHEREAS, Nacero has agreed to pay Odessa College the amount of $3,360,189.00 
in year one as payment in full of the tax obligations to Odessa College which will accrue in 
the final five years of the abatement period.  
WHEREAS, the Odessa College Board of Trustees voted in open meeting on April 15, 2021 to 
approve the requested abatement, and the motion to approve the abatement passed 
unanimously.   
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
ODESSA COLLEGE THAT the ten year tax abatement requested by Nacero with 100% tax 

abatement for the first five years, declining by 10% each year for the final five years of the 
abatement period, and providing for payment of $3,360,189.00 in year one of the abatement 
period as payment of the tax obligations which will accrue in the final five years of the 
abatement period is approved.   

 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 27th day of April, 2021. 
 
Odessa College  
 

By: ________________________________ 
       Tommy Clark 
       President, Board of Trustees 

 
ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Larry Johnson 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 4



Mr. Gary Johnson moved, seconded by Bruce Shearer, to approve the Resolution to Approve 
Nacero Tax Abatement. 
 

 Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 
Monthly Financial Statements & Budget Amendments 

 
 Ms. Brandy Ham, Chief Financial Officer, highlighted various areas of the financial statements and  
 Budget amendments as printed below: 
   

(Kristi Gibbs will put financial reports in minute book) 
 

Mr. Gary Johnson moved, seconded by Mr. Bruce Shearer, to approve the Monthly Financial 
Statements and Budget Amendments. 

 
  Motion passed unanimously.  
 

Quarterly Investment Reports 
 

Ms. Ham reviewed the Quarterly Investment Report for the quarter ending February 28, 2021, 
including our statements of compliance and a snapshot of the portfolio: 
 

  
    Face Amount/Shares $ 46,861,264.05 
    Market Value Total $ 47,563,897.11 
    Book Value Total $ 47,475,095.33 
    Yield to Maturity 0.53 
    Days to Maturity 375 

 
   

Ms. Ham reported the following quarter end results by Asset Class for the quarter ending February 
28, 2021, as follows:  

 Market Value Book Value (Cost) Yield 

CD’s $1,266,168 $1,243,000 1.32% 

Municipal Bonds $14,972,109 $14,893,831 1.34% 

Money Market $1,987,356 $2,000,000 0.32% 

Public Investment Pools $29,338,264 $29,338,264 0.11% 

  TOTAL $47,563,897 $47,475,095 0.54% 

 
   Earnings/ Rate of Return 
    Interest Earned     

 This Quarter $ 59,036 

 Fiscal Year  $ 118,239 

 Budget for FY21     $ 350,000 
    
  The annualized total rate of return on February 28, 2021, was 0.65%. Benchmark Yield is 0.09% 
 

Mr. Gary Johnson moved, seconded by Dr. Tara Deaver, to approve the Quarterly Investment    
Report. 5



  
Motion passed unanimously.  

 
 
 Education Report: Early College High Schools  
 

Mr. Karl Miller, Odessa Career & Technical Early College High School Principal, and Mr. James 
Ramage, Odessa Collegiate Academy Principal, joined to share updates on their respective schools. 
Mr. Miller shared enrollment statistics of OCTECHS and programs offered to students. Student may 
study Auto Tech, Diesel Tech, Business, Energy Tech, Criminal Justice, OSET, Culinary, and Welding 
Tech. Mr. Miller reported OCTECHS had their first college signing day in spring 2021 and thanked 
everyone who helped with that event. Mr. Ramage began by thanking members of the Odessa 
College team for all of their efforts in supporting OCA students. Mr. Ramage shared enrollment 
updates of each of their classes as well as current enrollment for next academic year. OCA has six 
programs to offer students: general studies, biology, business administration, liberal arts, STEM, 
and teaching early childhood-6 grade. Before graduation OCA students apply for at least 3 
universities for transfer opportunities as well as complete the FAFSA and applytexas applications. 
Each high school expects to have over 400 students on campus in the 2021-2022 school year. 
 
Institutional Effectiveness Report 
 
Dr. Janice Hicks, Associate Vice President of Institutional Effectiveness, shared updates from the 
Odessa College Leadership Institute, High Impact Strategies Workshop 2021 and the institutions 
that joined the program. Institutions who participated learned about Odessa College culture, 
innovative programs, and idea sharing. Dr. Hicks then shared positive feedback from participants 
from a post workshop evaluation. This programs will now lead to an OCLI network to keep these 
high achieving institutions connected and engaged with each other and Odessa College. Dr. Hicks 
shared data that was provided to participants including drop rates, success rates, and 
degree/credentials awarded. Lastly, Dr. Hicks introduced an upcoming Odessa College Student 
Experience Focus Group that will be hosted both in person and virtually to access students Odessa 
College experience and needs to allow the institution to continue to serve students well. 

 
President’s Report 

 
OCLI High Impact Strategies Workshop 
Odessa College hosted the 3rd Odessa College Leadership Institute High Impact Strategies 
Workshop. This year was the first virtual workshop that was attended by 5 community colleges 
with over 80 virtual participants. The 3 day event lead institutions through changing 
institutional culture, igniting innovation. 
 
Spring 2021 Enrollment 
Spring 2021 Odessa College had a record setting enrollment with a final enrollment of 6,387 
students, an increase of 2.9% from spring 2020.  
 
Vice President of Academic Partnerships 
Dr. Jonathan Fuentes has served in his current role at Odessa College for the past 2 years as the 
Executive Director for Academic Partnership. Under this leadership Odessa College has 
continued to set record enrollments and increased outreach to our ECISD partners and outlying 
areas. Dr. Fuentes’ role continues to evolve and grow with Odessa College enrollment and 
increasing partnerships. With this in mind, Dr. Fuentes’ title will change to Vice President of 
Academic Partnerships. 

6



 
Drive to Success Finale Event 
2021 Drive to Success Finale is Thursday April 29 at 5:30pm at the Sewell Auto Tech building. 
There will be a drawing from the seven finalists to announce who will be winner of a brand new 
Ford Mustang. 

 
Aspen Prize Virtual Ceremony 
Tuesday, May 18 at noon will be the Virtual Aspen Prize Ceremony. This year Odessa College is 
being considered alongside 9 other outstanding colleges. 

 
Wrangler Athletics Update 
Volleyball had a second consecutive trip to the NJCAA D1 Volleyball Championship and finished 
6th. Head Coach Kristi Gray was named WJCAC & NJCAA Southwest Region Coach of the Year.  
Cross Country ran at the NJCAA Region 5 Championships in the fall. The OC Blues Dance Team 
won 5 National Championships in Competition this year.  At the American Drill & Dance 
Nationals in Arlington, TX, the Blues won their 5th consecutive team hip-hop championship. 
Odessa Men’s Basketball Team was 20-3 this season and were WJCAC Regular Season 
Champions. Coach Franqua “Q” Bedell has been busy recruiting players for next season & 
Women’s Basketball will return to the court in 2021-22. The Rodeo team hosted the OC Rodeo 
for the 38th this year at the Ector County Coliseum. Shaylee Terry won the OC Rodeo in the 
Breakaway Roping event & Riggin Shippy won the Howard College Rodeo Bull Riding. Baseball is 
currently 16-21 on the season and is in contention for 3rd place in the WJCAC. Softball is 
currently 29-7 and ranked #18 in the country. The golf team is currently #4 in the NJCAA Men’s 
Golf poll. Golf will compete in the NJCAA D1 Golf National Tournament in Lubbock, TX.  
 
Spring Graduation 2021 
Spring Graduation will be May 7 & 8 in the Odessa College Sports Center. Students and Faculty 
will join masked & in person while all guests are invited to join via live stream on youtube as 
part of the ongoing effort to keep Odessa College campus and the community healthy.   
 
Twitter Storm 
Dr. Williams shared he has recently taken to Twitter to help spread more positivity in the 
world. He believes that everyone can be the positive spark to be the change this world needs. 
He invited the group to participate with Odessa College on Wednesday April 28th in the “Twitter 
storm” and putting positivity into the world with the hashtag #odessaallin. 
 

Executive Session: Personnel – Recommendation for Administrative Appointments, Pursuant to 
Section 551.074 of the Texas Open Meetings Act of the Government Code 
 

Executive Session: Personnel – Board Self-Evaluation – Pursuant to Item 551.074 of the Texas 
Open Meetings Act of the Government Code 
 
Mr. Gary Johnson moved, seconded by Mr. Shearer, to go into executive session. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Board went into Executive Session at 6:55 p.m. 
 
The meeting resumed at 7:15 p.m. 
Mr. Clark stated that no action was taken during the executive session.  He stated that Dr. 
Williams is evaluated annually by the Board in April and that the Board conducts and discusses the 7



results of their annual self-evaluation each April.  
 

Mr. Gary Johnson moved, seconded by Dr. Deaver, to approve the extension of Dr. Gregory 
Williams’ employment agreement with an expiration date of August 31, 2026. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
Mr. Gary Johnson moved, seconded by Mr. Shearer to approve the following administrative 
contracts for:  

Dr. Tramaine Anderson, Vice President for Instruction 
   Kim McKay, Vice President for Student Services & Enrollment Management 
   Robert Rivas, Chief of Staff 
   Ken Zartner, Vice President for Administrative Services 
   Jacqui Gore, Vice President of Advancement, Business & Governmental Relations 
   Dr. Jonathan Fuentes, Vice President of Academic Partnerships 
   Ashley Warren, Executive Assistant to the President 
 

Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Adjournment 
 

  The meeting was adjourned at 7:21 p.m. 
 

 
  
  __________________________________  __________________________________ 
  Secretary    Chair 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
------------------------------------------------------------0------------------------------------------------------------------- 

8



BID/RFP NO: 

PROJECT DESC: 

ESTIMATED BUDGET: 

REPORT TO PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
SUMMARY OF VENDOR PROPOSALS 

RFP-21008 

DSX DOOR ACCESS SYSTEM FOR RESIDENTS HALL 

COVID FUNDS 

EST. TIMELINE OF WORK.:. Delivery 8 Weeks Completed by August 1, 2Q21 

SCOPE OF PROJECT: The College requested wireless access control for approximately 102 
doors for Century Commons and 18 for Wrangler Hai'l. The Access Control System that the 
College has implemented on its campuses is the DSX Card System. A wireless DSX Card System 
was requested for both residents' halls for security purposes. The RFP was received on April, 
20,2021. Seven RFP's were sent to qualified vendors. As this is manufactured and sold by 
authorized distributors. Only one complete RFP was received. 

PROPOSALS: Base Bid 

Computex Technology Solutions, Virtual Box, CO BARD & Horizon, DIGI Security Systems, Knight 
Security Systems, Aprotex Corporation, Systech Systems. 

1. Systech 
Odessa, Texas. 

160,230.66 

OTHER PERTINENT FACTS OR INFORMATION: Systech maintains all the access doors 
for the Odessa College Campuses. Their service is outstanding they are an asset to the 
College. Security and door access has been crucial during COVD. 

9



0 

0 

a I . BYS• ECH 
A SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGY COMPANY 

suMMARY PRICING 

DSX CARD ACCESS SYSTEMS FOR CENTURY COMMONS 

DORM FIRST FLOOR 
.. 

DORM SECOND FLOOR .. 

·bQRM THIRD FLOOR 

DORM CLUBHOUSE 

BON:D 

.. $44;387.77 

$39,487:77 

$38,262.77 

$ .6137.93 

$4,548:00 

. TOTALS_· . $132;824:24 . , 
,/,,.,,...,,,.-~-- -

' 
.. · BID PRICe,-· ~ , . ..- . '$132,800.00 

office@systech-systerns.com 
STATE LICENSES 

ACR-1750576 I B05347 
10



ECH 
A SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGY COMPANY 

6965 Commerce 
Odessa Texas 79762 
Phone: 432-550-7964 

Odessa College 
201 W University Blvd, 
Odessa, TX 79764 
Attn: Bryan Heifner 

p s l 
DATE: 

Access Control For Odessa College Wrangler Student Housing 18 wireless locksets 2 hardwire doors 

. _ to,71o':b9ji;: '''"''_,,,,._, __ 
3 , -- 964.62}I 

"' >-, '"'"' --~ 

---,------'-"---'-"'-1------------------1_8_-1,:,,,, .. ,,,,,.._' 3'""'"0~0._0-10_ i1? :;. 5;40Q,O.~) 
l~-,---..o.·,.;;.;:.~-,-I-A_ut_o_-s_en_s_in=-g~10_I_1o_o_B_as_eT_co_m_m_u_n_ic_at_io_ns ____ -t-___ 1 __ -fc--'::-',.,-:-'-48.._5...,-._0-19 -\~ - . __ 28s,:q9Ji 

Intelligent 2 Door Package 1 ;392.86 _ ;t~·;,;:: j ,392.8~1111 
<----'"--·l-......c...---------------+---1---+-,,~-1~4844 i ;\\c :-·-·- f48 44' -,: 

1---c--,---,-------,-LP_s_1_10_v_A_C_27_V_5_.5_A_,_15_o_w_a_tt_P_S_f_or.,.2_4V_Lo_c_ks __ -t-______ --,-___ , ,- '<i:-- >,.:,s-,,_,_, __ -
AC-TS9 Mullion Egress Button 1 69.32_ ~.:fi> 69.32 

-,---,---i---------------i----1--t,,-...,.,,..,..,--9-9-.48 : -99'.4§'.' 

1 -'------1 . _ 42i71'i~ Sngl Elc Mag Lek Door Stat Swt 

HID ProxPoint 3" Mullion Mount Reader Grey 33 bit 

Note: License Cost Is A DSX Requirment - NDE Locks 

· · Bought From Any Source Require The License Fee 

One Year Equipment / Workmanship Warranty 

Customer Acceptance (sign below): 

x _________________ _ 

',:, '':437.74i _ 237.74t!i 
'"""..,,'""'''"',. Y:ft, 

SUBTOTAL 

LABOR TOTAL~§{f'''3,300·.o.9JII 
Programming $ _ 4,400.00 
TAX 
TOTAL 

For Questions Concerning This Price Quotation, Please Contact 
Scott Stone, 432-631-8320, Scottstone@systech-systems.com, 

Thank You For Your Business! 

11



REPORT TO PROPERTY COMMITTEE
SUMMARY OF VENDOR PROPOSALS

BID/RFP NO: RFP-21-007

PROJECT DESC: RFP-21-007 FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS 

ESTIMATED BUDGET: _345,000                                      

EST. TIMELINE OF WORK:     August 1, 2021-July 31, 2022      

 SCOPE OF PROJECT:    Odessa College requested RFP’s for the food service operations for the 
Odessa College Campus.  Seven RFP’s were sent to competitive vendors for Cafeteria Services, 
Ten Franchisee/Auxiliary vendors were contacted for other areas on campus such as Grab-N-
Go, Wood Building, Wifi JAVA LRC.  Odessa College received one complete bid.  Odessa College 
will continue to negotiate with the other areas of the College to determine the best options for 
the students.  

PROPOSALS:                                                                                                 Base Bid 

Prince Food Systems, Chartwells Higher Ed, Thomas Cuisine, Sedexo, Aramark, Creative Dining, 

Great Western Dining:

Meal Plan Students  
Current Contract                                                    New Contract 
11.06 Per Person                                                    12.86 Per Person      
X 230=2,543.80 weekly                                        X 230=2,957.80
Childcare Meals 
Current Contract                                                        New Contract                                          
4.04 Per Person                                                         4.96 Per Person
                                                                                                                           

OTHER PERTINENT FACTS OR INFORMATION:   The new contract offers a 2,000 
allowance for any event of the College’s choice, every semester a mid-night breakfast will 
be provided and served by GWD with the help of OC staff if desired.  Once a semester a 
COOK OUT can be provided at no extra cost to the students on the meal plan.  Faculty and 
Staff meal price is 5.75.   Meals are unlimited servings.

12



REPORT TO PROPERTY COMMITTEE
SUMMARY OF VENDOR PROPOSALS

BID/RFP NO: PRQ-21-008 Modular Classrooms 

PROJECT DESC:  BUYBOARD COOP-MODULAR CLASSROOMS        

ESTIMATED BUDGET: _Vision 2030                                    

EST. TIMELINE OF WORK:     Delivered and Installed by August 1, 2021      

 SCOPE OF PROJECT: Odessa College is seeking to purchase Modular Buildings to provide 
adequate lunch room space for the Early College students, due to Travis Hall being demoed for 
the new construction of the HSB Building.  Odessa College sent seven qualified Buyboard 
vendors an invitation to price quote.  Odessa College received three proposals.  

PROPOSALS:                                                                                                 Base Bid 

Palomar Modular Buildings, Steward Modular, Sustainable Modular, Vesta Modular, Team Mobile, 
RamTech, Aries Buildings. 
                                                                                     48 x 60       OR         24 x 64                    (2) Each                   

1. Aries                       Refurbished             $198,620                    Refurbished        $118,720 total
                                  New                                 N/A                            New                    $204,050 total 

               Bid includes 38,720 for delivery set up-dollar amount will be less on the refurbished 
                                                                 

2. RamTech               New                                  N/A                            New                      $176,770
3. Sustainable           New                                  N/A                            New                      $228,434

                                                                                                                           

OTHER PERTINENT FACTS OR INFORMATION:   The price quote was originally for 
24 x 64 building as we didn’t think the 48 x 60 was in our budget, but Aries a 
building design company is moving these from Texas City.  These are on a college 
campus and have been there since the hurricane.  These buildings will be ready by 
June 11th and can be directly delivered to the College Campus if approved.  The 
delivery charge will be cheaper if we can obtain those buildings that are 
refurbished from Aries Building.  The other buildings will be manufactured and 
are all pretty close in price range.  

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



ODESSA COLLEGE 
AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT BUSINESS ORGANIZATIONS 

Effective May 25, 2021 
  
Upon documented compliance with all requirements of the Odessa College Investment Policy, the 
business organizations listed below are authorized by the Board of Trustees to engage in investment 
transactions with the District. 
 

 Lone Star Investment Pool 
 LOGIC Government Investment Cooperative  
 TexPool Public Funds Investment Pool 
 Prosperity Bank  
 BBVA Compass Bank 
 JP Morgan Chase Bank  
 Raymond James Financial 
 Wells Fargo Bank  
 Frost Bank 
 Wells Fargo Institutional Brokerage    
 UBS Financial Services 
 Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. 
 Hilltop Securities Inc. 
 Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. 
 Mischler Financial Group 

    
The Investment Officers of Odessa College hereby attest that they (1) do not have a personal business relationship 
with any of the business organizations listed above and (2) are not related within the second degree by affinity or 
consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell for any of the organizations.  
     

 
 

05/25/2021 
Attest   Date 
 

 

 

05/25/2021 
Attest   Date 

 
 The qualified representative of the business organization offering to engage in an investment transaction 
with an investing entity shall execute a written instrument in a form acceptable to the investing entity and the 
business organization substantially to the effect that the business organization has: 

(1)  received and reviewed the investment policy of the entity; and 

(2)  acknowledged that the business organization has implemented reasonable procedures and 

controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions conducted between the entity and the organization that 

are not authorized by the entity's investment policy. 

 

Approved, this 25th day of May 2021 

 

________________________________________ 

 Secretary, Board of Trustees 24



STRICTLY PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

Current Market Update, Review of 
Outstanding Debt, Preliminary Plan of 
Finance – Revenue Bonds and 
Preliminary Timetable

May 18, 2021

Odessa College

Matthew Boles Julie MacMillan
Managing Director Vice President

Regional Director

RBC Capital Markets, LLC RBC Capital Markets, LLC
200 Crescent Court 200 Crescent Court
Suite 1500 Tel: 214-989-1672 Suite 1500 Tel: 214-989-1629
Dallas, TX 75201 Fax: 214-989-1650 Dallas, TX 75201 Fax: 214-989-1650

matt.boles@rbccm.com julie.macmillan@rbccm.com

25



RBC Capital Markets2

Table of Contents

1. Current Market Review

2. District’s Outstanding Debt Profile

3. Preliminary Plan of Finance – Revenue Bonds

4. Preliminary Timetable

26



Section 1

Current Market Review

27



RBC Capital Markets4

$1.9 Trillion American Rescue Plan Act
1) $1400 stimulus checks for qualifying individuals and extended unemployment aid
2) $350B direct federal aid to state and local governments
3) $170B for education:  $130B for K-12, $35B for colleges and universities, $5B for governors
4) $145B for vaccines, testing, and other support for health care providers
5) $36B for housing including rental assistance and $30B for hardest hit public transit agencies
The Market is trying to determine if the amount of Stimulus funds received will reduce the amount that will be 
borrowed for capital

1

Key Continuing Areas of Market Focus 

Source: Bloomberg, RBC Capital Markets as of May 10, 2021. For more sources, see disclaimer slide. 

The Market is Awaiting Congressional Action on President Biden’s $2.3 Trillion American Jobs Plan
1) $650B Home Infrastructure: $213B affordable housing, $137B public schools, $111B clean drinking water, $100B high-

speed broadband, $100B electrical infrastructure
2) $621B Transportation Infrastructure: $174B electric vehicles, $115B highways & bridges, $85B public transit, $80B 

rail, $42B airports and ports, $50B infrastructure resilience
3) $580B Workforce:  $300B manufacturing, $180B R&D, $100B workforce development
4) $400B Caretaking Economy:  home and community-based care for elderly and disabled people

President Biden Also Proposed a $1.8 Trillion American Families Plan
1) $225B toward child-care services
2) $225B to create a national comprehensive paid family and medical leave program
3) $200B for universal preschool for three- and four-year-olds
4) $109B toward ensuring two years of free community college for all students
5) $80B in additional funding for Pell Grants 
6) Tax credits and cuts for America’s families and workers, including $200 billion to make the expanded Affordable Care Act 

(ACA) premiums tax credits permanent

2

Current Market Review

28



RBC Capital Markets5

 US shares posted mixed results last week; the DJIA and S&P gained 2.7%
and 1.2%, respectively, as the Nasdaq declined 1.5%.

 ISM data revealed growth in the manufacturing and services sectors of the
economy in April, but both indexes came in below consensus.

 April non-farm payrolls rose 266k and were forecast at +1mm; March non-
farm payroll gains were revised down from 916k to 770k.

 The unemployment rate rose from 6.0% to 6.1%, while the consensus
called for a decline to 5.8%.

 IG/corporate supply totaled $25bn last week and is expected to top $40bn
this week; the US Aggregate Index closed at a YTD tight of 87bp on Friday.

Economic Update

U.S. Economic Overview

U.S. Equity Market U.S. Treasury Rates

Current Market Review

RBC Economic Outlook and Interest Rate Forecasts(1)

(1) RBC Rate and Economic Forecast as of May 6, 2021.
*Top of 25 basis point range. 

Q2'21 Q3'21 Q4'21 Q1'22 Q2'22

Real GDP (QoQ) 10.50 5.50 3.00 1.90 1.90

Core Inflation (YoY) 3.60 2.90 2.70 2.20 1.80

Fed Funds* 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.38 0.38

2-Year Notes 0.20 0.40 0.60 0.90 1.10

5-Year Notes 1.20 1.35 1.45 1.50 1.60

10-Year Notes 1.80 1.90 2.00 2.05 2.10

30-Year Bonds 2.40 2.45 2.50 2.60 2.60

0.000%

1.000%

2.000%

3.000%

4.000%

5.000%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

30-Year UST 10-Year UST 5-Year UST

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

DJIA S&P 500

29



RBC Capital Markets6

 2020 Municipal Supply: $452 billion

 2021 Municipal Supply (Forecast): $425 billion

 Treasury auctions include $58bn 3s on Tuesday, $41bn 10s on Wednesday,
and $27bn 30s on Thursday.

 Municipal supply totaled $10.1bn last week, and this week’s calendar is
expected to total $6.7bn.

 Last week’s primary supply was well-received, as investors turned to tax-
exempt and taxable new issues to deploy cash.

 Municipal bond funds reported net cash inflows of $585mm last week; inflows
were skewed to long-end and high-yield funds, while shorter-duration funds
saw outflows.

Municipal Market Update

Today’s MMD Curve in Context Tax-Exempt and Taxable Yield Trends: January 1, 2017 - Present

* Publicly offered municipal debt; excludes private placements.

2020 – 2021 Monthly Supply* ($ Billions)Municipal Market Overview

Current Market Review

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29
Maturity Year

15-Year Average
7-May-2020
7-May-2021

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

1.25%

1.50%

1.75%

2.00%

2.25%

2.50%

2.75%

3.00%

3.25%

3.50%

Jan-17May-17Sep-17 Jan-18May-18Sep-18 Jan-19May-19Sep-19 Jan-20May-20Sep-20 Jan-21

10 Yr AAA

10 Yr UST

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar Ap

r

M
ay

Ju
ne Ju

l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

$ 
Bi

llio
ns

2020 2021

30



RBC Capital Markets7

BBI 20 Index and Municipal Fund Flows

Bond Buyer 20 GO Bond Index Since 1961

Lipper Municipal Fund Flows

Today’s 2.25% level is lower than 98.98% of historical rates since January 1961.

% of Time in Each Range Since 1961

Current Market Review

Source: Bloomberg as of April 21, 2021.
Thomson Municipal Market Data 

 (14,000)

 (12,000)

 (10,000)

 (8,000)

 (6,000)

 (4,000)

 (2,000)

 -

 2,000

$ 
M

illi
on

s

Flow Change 4-WK Moving Average

0.0%
1.0%
2.0%
3.0%
4.0%
5.0%
6.0%
7.0%
8.0%
9.0%

10.0%
11.0%
12.0%
13.0%
14.0%

19
61

19
63

19
65

19
67

19
69

19
71

19
73

19
75

19
77

19
79

19
81

19
83

19
85

19
87

19
89

19
91

19
93

19
95

19
97

19
99

20
01

20
03

20
05

20
07

20
09

20
11

20
13

20
15

20
17

20
19

20
21

Bond Buyer 20 GO Bond Index
Today's Rate at 2.25%

Yield Range
Less than 3.50% 12.71%
3.50% - 4.00% 10.71%
4.01% - 4.50% 11.15%
4.51% - 5.00% 9.59%
5.01% - 5.50% 13.37%
5.51% - 6.00% 9.31%
6.01% - 6.50% 7.21%
6.51% - 7.00% 6.58%
7.01% - 7.50% 5.94%
7.51% - 8.00% 3.49%
Greater than 8.00% 9.94%
Total 100.00%

31



RBC Capital Markets8

0.55%

1.05%

1.55%

2.05%

2.55%

3.05%

3.55%

4.05%

4.55%

5.05%

Jan-10 Jan-11 Jan-12 Jan-13 Jan-14 Jan-15 Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

10 Yr 20 Yr 30 Yr

Municipal Market Data – 30 Year "AAA" Rates

 After closing at 1.59% the previous week, the 30-year “AAA” MMD decreased 4bps from April 30 – May 7, closing at the current rate of 1.55%.

Current Market Review

Source: TM3, Thomson Reuters
10, 20, and 30 year “AAA” MMD shown to represent different average lives of municipal transactions
Rates as of May 7, 2021

“AAA” MMD January 1, 2010 to Present Shift in “AAA” MMD Since May 2020

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

1.25%

1.50%

1.75%

2.00%

2.25%

2.50%

2.75%

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

January 1, 2010 to Present

Maximum
Minimum
Current

Shift in 30-year "AAA" MMD
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

-1.34% -0.01% 0.27% -0.51% 0.47% -0.93% -0.70%

30-Year
5.080%
1.270%
1.550%

20-Year
4.890%
1.080%
1.360%

10-Year
3.460%
0.580%
0.970%

May 1, 2020 to Present
10 Yr 20 Yr 30 Yr

Maximum 1.350% 1.950% 2.160%
Minimum 0.580% 1.080% 1.270%
Average 0.866% 1.370% 1.574%

32



Section 2

District’s Outstanding Debt Profile

33



RBC Capital Markets10

District Debt Profile

District’s Outstanding Debt Profile

Odessa College Debt Profile – Limited Tax Bonds and Revenue Bonds

Odessa College Limited Tax Debt Series 2017 Odessa College Revenue Debt Series 2012

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

$5,000,000

20
21

/2
2

20
22

/2
3

20
23

/2
4

20
24

/2
5

20
25

/2
6

20
26

/2
7

20
27

/2
8

20
28

/2
9

20
29

/3
0

20
30

/3
1

20
31

/3
2

20
32

/3
3

20
33

/3
4

20
34

/3
5

20
35

/3
6

20
36

/3
7

20
37

/3
8

20
38

/3
9

20
39

/4
0

20
40

/4
1

De
bt

 S
er

vi
ce

Odessa College
Outstanding Limited Tax Debt Service Series 2017

Principal Interest

Note: Debt service payments reflect payments from September 1 through August 31.

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

$1,000,000

20
21

/2
2

20
22

/2
3

20
23

/2
4

20
24

/2
5

20
25

/2
6

20
26

/2
7

20
27

/2
8

20
28

/2
9

20
29

/3
0

20
30

/3
1

20
31

/3
2

20
32

/3
3

20
33

/3
4

De
bt

 S
er

vi
ce

Odessa College
Outstanding Revenue Debt Service Series 2012

Principal Interest

Note: Debt service payments reflect payments from September 1 through August 31.

Odessa College – Ratings 

 “AA/AA-” (Fitch/S&P) - The limited tax bond rating reflects the district's ample revenue-raising ability, sound expenditure flexibility, strong reserves, and limited
historical revenue volatility. These factors combine to provide the district with a high level of operating flexibility and anticipated financial resilience throughout
the economic cycle.

 “A+” (S&P) – The revenue bond rating reflects S&P’s view of the district's healthy full-accrual operating surpluses aided by favorable enrollment trends and
state appropriation increases, coupled with improved revenue-debt only financial resource ratios.

Issued Outstanding Coupon Range of First Final
Issue Par Amount Par Amount* Callable Bonds Call Date Maturity Structure Use of Proceeds

Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds, Ser 2012 $6,315,000 $4,420,000 4.000% 07/01/2022 07/01/2034 Fixed College Facility
Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Ser 2017 57,910,000          57,910,000          4.000% - 5.000% 08/15/2027 08/15/2041 Fixed Refunding

Total $64,225,000 $62,330,000
*As of 8/31/2021.

34



Section 3

Preliminary Plan of Finance –
Revenue Bonds

35



RBC Capital Markets12

Preliminary Plan of Finance – Revenue Bonds
New Money Bonds | Structuring and Bond Sale Assumptions*

New Money Revenue Bond Assumptions

 Odessa College (the “College”) has plans to construct a new Health Science Building ( the “HSB”). Currently the cost of the HSB is estimated at $39.7MM.

 The College has dedicated $5,050,678 in institutional funds toward the project.

 The College has also been raising private donations for the HSB and currently has $1,021,500 in gifts in hand and $16,100,000 in grants and pledges that will be
paid over multiple years.

 In order to move forward with the construction of the HSB, the College is planning to issue Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (the “New Money
Bonds”) with the intention of paying the debt service on the New Money Bonds with a combination of institutional resources and private donations.

 The preliminary analysis for the New Money Bonds is based on the following:

- Assumes the College will generate a maximum of $35MM in project fund proceeds from the New Money Bonds for the HSB. The remaining $4.7MM will be
provided from funds already on hand.

- Assumes the New Money Bonds will be structured with a maximum maturity of 15-years and with annual payments that are greater than the pledge
payments projected to be received during the respective fiscal year.

- Assumes the pricing of the New Money Bonds will be based on the College’s underlying rating of “A+” by S&P with enhancement from a bond insurance
policy for an enhanced rating for “AA”.

- Assumes the College will meet the debt service reserve requirement for the New Money Bones with bond proceeds.

- Assumes an initial interest payment on January 1, 2022 and an initial principal payment on July 1, 2022.

- Assumes the New Money Bonds have a ten-year optional par call feature.

- Assumes cost of issuance of $200,000 (preliminary) and underwriters’ discount of $7.00 per bond (preliminary).

- Assumes cost for bond insurance premium is 0.45% of total debt service (preliminary, subject to change).

- Assumes the preliminary numbers are based current market tax-exempt market rates as of May 4, 2021, plus 40 basis points (0.40%) (preliminary subject to
change).

- Assumes a pricing date of July 8, 2021 and a delivery date of August 4, 2021.

*Preliminary, subject to change.

36



RBC Capital Markets13

Preliminary Plan of Finance – Revenue Bonds
New Money Bonds | Summary Statistics, Sources and Uses, and Debt Service*

*Preliminary, subject to change. Based on tax-exempt rates as of May 4, 2021 + 40 bps (0.40%).

08/04/2021
08/04/2021
01/01/2022
07/01/2036

1.784413%
2.195404%
2.267474%
4.000000%

8.523
7.367

33,635,000$              
35,000,000$            

38,664,175$              
11,466,672$              

6,672,942$                
45,101,672$              

3,372,072$                
3,025,266$                Average Annual Debt Service

Total Interest
Net Debt Service
Total Debt Service
Maximum Annual Debt Service

Bond Proceeds

Arbitrage Yield
True Interest Cost (TIC)
All-In TIC
Average Coupon

Average Life (years)
Duration of Issue (years)

Par Amount
Project Fund Deposit

Last Maturity

Summary Statistics
Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2021

Dated Date
Delivery Date
First Coupon

Bond Proceeds:
33,635,000.00$     

5,029,175.00          
 $   38,664,175.00 

  
Project Fund Deposits:

35,000,000.00$     

Other Fund Deposits:
3,025,265.85          

Delivery Date Expenses:
200,000.00             
235,445.00             

Bond Insurance 202,957.52             
638,402.52$           

Other Uses of Funds:
506.63                      

 $   38,664,175.00 

Sources:

Sources and Uses
Consolidated Revenue Bonds, Series 2021

Uses:

Debt Service Reserve Fund

Cost of Issuance
Underwriter's Discount

Additional Proceeds

Par Amount
Premium

Project Fund

Period Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service
08/31/2022 2,150,000$        4.000% 1,222,072$      3,372,072$       
08/31/2023 1,720,000          4.000% 1,259,400        2,979,400         
08/31/2024 1,790,000          4.000% 1,190,600        2,980,600         
08/31/2025 1,860,000          4.000% 1,119,000        2,979,000         
08/31/2026 1,935,000          4.000% 1,044,600        2,979,600         
08/31/2027 2,015,000          4.000% 967,200            2,982,200         
08/31/2028 2,095,000          4.000% 886,600            2,981,600         
08/31/2029 2,180,000          4.000% 802,800            2,982,800         
08/31/2030 2,265,000          4.000% 715,600            2,980,600         
08/31/2031 2,355,000          4.000% 625,000            2,980,000         
08/31/2032 2,450,000          4.000% 530,800            2,980,800         
08/31/2033 2,550,000          4.000% 432,800            2,982,800         
08/31/2034 2,650,000          4.000% 330,800            2,980,800         
08/31/2035 2,755,000          4.000% 224,800            2,979,800         
08/31/2036 2,865,000          4.000% 114,600            2,979,600         

Total 33,635,000$   11,466,672$ 45,101,672$  

Bond Debt Service
Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2021

37



RBC Capital Markets14

Preliminary Plan of Finance – Revenue Bonds
Refunding Bonds | Advance Refunding Scenario*

The College’s Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 have a call date of July 1, 2022. $4,420,000 of the
outstanding principal can be advance refunded on a taxable basis for projected debt service savings.Taxable Advance Refunding

Summary of Bonds Considered In Refunding Analysis

Summary of Assumptions Summary of Projected Debt Service Savings

 Assumes current market taxable rates as May 4, 2021 with a pricing date
on the Consolidated Fund Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series
2021 (the “Refunding Bonds”) in July 2021. (Subject to change.)

 Assumes the Refunding Bonds are sold with the following ratings: “A+”
Underlying / “AA” Insured.

 Assumes the Refunding Bonds are sold with a standard 10-year optional
par call.

 Assumes the College will contribute a portion of the debt service reserve
from the Series 2012 Bonds to the refunding and assumes the College
will fund the Refunding Bonds debt service requirement with bond
proceeds.

 Assumes the Refunding Bonds deliver on August 4, 2021 with the first
interest payment due on January 1, 2022.

 Assumes the Refunding Bonds are structured to provide uniform savings.

 Assumes the Refunding Bonds are sold concurrently with the New Money
Bonds, taking advantage of some cost of issuance efficiencies.

Preliminary, subject to change.

Current
Analysis
1-Mar-21
4-Aug-21

$4,420,000
4.000%

$349,616
$26,728

$297,975
6.742%
2.567%

$89,822
30.14%

Interest Rate Sensitivity - 25 bps + 25 bps
PV of Debt Service Savings $386,597 $211,043
PV Savings as a % of Refunded Bonds 8.747% 4.775%

Negative Arbitrage
Negative Arb. / Net PV of Savings

Par Amount Refunded Bonds

Total Debt Service Savings
Average Annual Savings (2022 - 2034)
Net PV of Debt Service Savings
PV SAV as % of Refunded Bonds

Description 
Taxable Rates as of
Delivery Date of Refunding Bonds

All-in TIC of Refunding Bonds

Avg Coupon of Refunded Bonds

Maturities Par Amount Coupon
Series to be Refunded to be Refunded Range Call Date

Cons Fund Revenue Bonds, Ser 2012 2022 -2034* $4,420,000 3.00% - 4.00% 07/01/22
Total $4,420,000

*Includes term bond with mandatory sinking fund installments. 

38



RBC Capital Markets15

Summary of Projected Cash Flow Savings

Preliminary, subject to change.

Preliminary Plan of Finance – Revenue Bonds
Refunding Bonds | Advance Refunding Projected Cash Flows*

Date Prior Refunding PV Savings
8/31 Debt Service Debt Service Savings 2.2498%
2022 $409,450 $380,574 $28,876 $28,858
2023 412,400 387,055 25,345 24,719
2024 407,600 380,105 27,495 26,145
2025 407,600 382,686 24,914 23,163
2026 412,200 384,686 27,514 24,942
2027 411,200 385,416 25,784 22,842
2028 414,800 389,960 24,840 21,499
2029 407,800 383,688 24,112 20,386
2030 410,600 381,712 28,888 23,824
2031 407,800 379,302 28,498 22,960
2032 409,600 381,448 28,152 22,158
2033 410,800 383,016 27,784 21,362
2034 946,400 918,986 27,414 20,590
Total $5,868,250 $5,518,634 $349,616 $303,448

Savings Summary
Average Annual Savings (2022 - 2034) $26,728
PV of Savings from Cash Flow $303,448
Less: Prior funds on hand ($435,000)
Plus: Refunding funds on hand $427,525
Additional Proceeds $2,003
Net PV of Savings $297,975

39



RBC Capital Markets16

Preliminary Plan of Finance – Revenue Bonds
Authorization | Bond Issuance Process

 The strategy for effecting the sale of the New Money Bonds and the Refunding Bonds would be for the Board to authorize the Administration to move forward
with the transactions given certain Board approved parameters are met. Those parameters are memorialized in a Resolution.

 The Resolution would authorize District administration (the President of Odessa College or the Chief Financial Officer) to approve the new Money Bonds and
the Refunding Bonds and execute the necessary documents when the transaction terms have been set for each series of bonds, assuming the terms meet or
exceed the stated parameters, respectively.

 The District has utilized a parameters order on refunding bonds in the past. This authorization method allows the District to proceed with preparing for the
transaction on a schedule that can be responsive to market conditions, but that does not allow the transaction to be completed unless the stated and approved
parameters are met or exceeded.

 The parameters for the New Money Bonds and the Refunding Bonds are listed below.

1) the aggregate principal amount of the New Money Bonds shall not
exceed $35,000,000;

2) proceeds of the New Money Bonds may include funding a debt service
reserve fund associated with the issuance of the New Money Bonds, if
deemed in the best interest of the financing by the Pricing Officer, and
to pay the costs of issuing the New Money Bonds;

3) the sale price of the New Money Bonds shall be not less than 95% of
the initial aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued interest
thereon, if any;

4) the latest date for a Stated Maturity of the New Money Bonds shall not
be later than July 1, 2036; and

5) the maximum interest rate of any New Money Bonds shall not exceed
3.50% per annum.

New Money Bond Parameters Refunding Bond Parameters

Authorization | Bond Issuance Process

1) the aggregate principal amount of the New Money Bonds shall not
exceed $35,000,000

2) proceeds of the New Money Bonds may include funding a debt
service reserve fund associated with the issuance of the New Money
Bonds, if deemed in the best interest of the financing by the Pricing
Officer, and to pay the costs of issuing the New Money Bonds;

3) the sale price of the New Money Bonds shall be not less than 95% of
the initial aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued interest
thereon, if any;

4) the latest date for a stated maturity of the New Money Bonds shall not
be later than July 1, 2036; and

5) the true interest rate for the New Money Bonds as a series shall not
exceed 4.00%.

1) the aggregate principal amount of the Refunding Bonds shall not
exceed $5,000,000;

2) proceeds of the Refunding Bonds may include funding a debt service
reserve fund associated with the issuance of the Refunding Bonds, if
deemed in the best interest of the financing by the Pricing Officer, and
to pay the costs of issuing the Refunding Bonds;

3) the sale price of the Refunding Bonds shall be not less than 95% of
the initial aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued interest
thereon, if any;

4) the latest date for a stated maturity of the Refunding Bonds shall not
be later than July 1, 2034;

5) the true interest rate for the Refunding Bonds as a series shall not
exceed 3.00%; and

6) the refunding must produce net present value savings of at least
4.0%; calculated by netting out any issuer contribution and including
back in additional proceeds that are generated by the refunding
transaction.

40



Section 4

Preliminary Timetable

41



RBC Capital Markets18

Preliminary Timetable

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31
30 31

OC - Odessa College - Issuer
RBCCM - RBC Capital Markets, LLC - Financial Advisor 1 Holiday
MPH - McCall, Parkhurst & Horton, LLP - Bond Counsel 1 BOT Mtg
TBD - Underwriter(s) 1 Debt Sale Activity

Action Responsibility

RBCCM
OC, RBCCM
OC
OC, RBCCM, MPH

RBCCM
OC, RBCCM, MPH

OC
RBCCM
OC
RBCCM
RBCCM
OC, MPH
RBCCM
OC, RBCCM
RBCCM
RBCCM
All Parties
RBCCM
OC, RBCCM
OC, RBCCM
MPH, RBCCM
RBCCM
All Parties
All Parties

RBCCM
MPH
All Parties
All Parties

*Preliminary, subject to change. As of May 12, 2021.

08-Jun-21 Distribute Revised Draft POS

01-Jul-21 Finalize and Distribute POS to Potential Investors

Regular Board Meeting - Action Item | Review Plan of Finance and 
Approve Parameters Resolution Authorizing Issuance of the Bonds 

25-May-21

18-Jun-21 Distribute Revised Draft POS

08-Jun-21 Distribute Preliminary Documents for Insurance Bid (if needed)

25-Jun-21 Receive Final Comments on Draft POS
29-Jun-21 Receive S&P Credit Rating

15-Jun-21 Rating Agency Conference Call

AUGUSTJULYMAY

Timetable

2021
JUNE

Closing (Funds Transferred - Bonds Delivered)

12-Jul-21 Submit Documents to Attorney General for Approval

04-Aug-21

08-Jul-21 Negotiated Sale - Bonds Marketed to Investors

Distribute Draft of Final Official Statement ("FOS") for Comments09-Jul-21

14-Jul-21 Receive Comments, Finalize & Distribute FOS

08-Jul-21 Pricing Certificate Executed by Authorized District Representative - 
Interest Rates Locked In

Distribute Draft POS and Credit Information to Rating Agency

12-May-21

25-May-21 Distribute Draft POS for Comments 

08-Jun-21

13-May-21 Deadline for Agenda Items for 5/19 Finance Comm Meeting

04-Jun-21 Selection of Underwriter(s)

Financing Team 
Members

Calendar Color Legend

02-Jun-21 Receive comments on Draft POS

Date

Information for POS returned to RBCCM
29-Apr-21 Request Information for Preliminary Official Statement ("POS")

18-May-21 Finance Committee Meeting - Review Plan of Finance and Parameters 
Resolution Authorizing Issuance of Bonds

01-Jun-21 Post TEFRA Notice on College website

30-Jun-21 Finalize documents with Bond Insurer (if needed)
29-Jun-21 Receive Insuance Bid (if needed)

10-Jun-21 TEFRA Hearing

15-Jun-21 Receive Comments on Draft POS

23-Jun-21 Due Diligence Call with Underwriters

42



RBC Capital Markets19

Disclaimer

This presentation was prepared exclusively for the benefit of and internal use by the recipient for the purpose of considering the transaction or transactions contemplated
herein. This presentation is confidential and proprietary to RBC Capital Markets, LLC (“RBCCM”) and may not be disclosed, reproduced, distributed or used for any other
purpose by the recipient without RBCCM’s express written consent.

By acceptance of these materials, and notwithstanding any other express or implied agreement, arrangement, or understanding to the contrary, RBCCM, its affiliates and the
recipient agree that the recipient (and its employees, representatives, and other agents) may disclose to any and all persons, without limitation of any kind from the
commencement of discussions, the tax treatment, structure or strategy of the transaction and any fact that may be relevant to understanding such treatment, structure or
strategy, and all materials of any kind (including opinions or other tax analyses) that are provided to the recipient relating to such tax treatment, structure, or strategy.

The information and any analyses contained in this presentation are taken from, or based upon, information obtained from the recipient or from publicly available sources,
the completeness and accuracy of which has not been independently verified, and cannot be assured by RBCCM. The information and any analyses in these materials
reflect prevailing conditions and RBC CM’s views as of this date, all of which are subject to change.

To the extent projections and financial analyses are set forth herein, they may be based on estimated financial performance prepared by or in consultation with the recipient
and are intended only to suggest reasonable ranges of results. The printed presentation is incomplete without reference to the oral presentation or other written materials
that supplement it.

IRS Circular 230 Disclosure: RBCCM and its affiliates do not provide tax advice and nothing contained herein should be construed as tax advice. Any discussion of U.S. tax
matters contained herein (including any attachments) (i) was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by you for the purpose of avoiding tax penalties; and (ii)
was written in connection with the promotion or marketing of the matters addressed herein. Accordingly, you should seek advice based upon your particular circumstances
from an independent tax advisor.

43



RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
of

ODESSA JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF

ODESSA JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT 
CONSOLIDATED FUND REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2021

44



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1.  Recitals, Amount and Purpose of the Bonds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Section 2.  Designation of the Bonds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Section 3.  Delegation to Pricing Officer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

Section 4.  Characteristics of the Bonds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Section 5.  Form of Bonds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11

Section 7.  Definitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18

Section 8.  Pledge; Security and Payments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27

Section 9.  Rates and Charges; Covenants Relating to Gross Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27

Section 10.  Creation and Confirmation of Funds; Flow of Funds. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28

Section 11.  Debt Service Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30

Section 12.  Debt Service Reserve Funds; Series 2021 Reserve Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31

Section 13.  Deficiencies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32

Section 14.  Investment Earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32

Section 15.  Transfer of Funds to the Paying Agent/Registrar . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32

Section 16.  Security of Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32

Section 17.  Issuance of Additional Parity Obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33

Section 18.  No Obligation of Lien Superior to That of the Parity Obligations; Non-Recourse 
Debt and Subordinate Lien Obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34

Section 19.  Method of Amendment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34

Section 20.  General Covenants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36

Section 21.  Remedies in the Event of Default . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38

Section 22.  Bonds Are Limited Obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38

i

45



Section 23.  Damaged, Mutilated, Lost, Stolen, or Destroyed Bonds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38

Section 24.  Custody, Approval, and Registration of Bonds; Bond Counsel's Opinion, 
Bond Insurance, and CUSIP Numbers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39

Section 25.  Covenants Regarding Tax Exemption of Interest on the Bonds. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40

Section 26.  Defeasance of Bonds. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43

Section 27. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44

Section 28.  Continued Perfection of Security Interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44

Section 29.  Further Procedures; Engagement of Bond Counsel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44

Section 30.  Inconsistent Provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45

Section 31.  Compliance with Rule 15c2-12 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45

Section 32.  Public Meeting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48

Section 32.  Payment and Performance on Business Days. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48

Section 33.  Individuals Not Liable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49

Section 34.  Governing Law . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49

Section 35.  Severability . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49

Section 36.  Effective Date . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49

ii

46



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF ODESSA JUNIOR COLLEGE
DISTRICT CONSOLIDATED FUND REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2021 IN ONE OR MORE
SERIES AS TAXABLE AND/OR TAX-EXEMPT BONDS; APPOINTING A PRICING
OFFICER AND DELEGATING TO THE PRICING OFFICER THE AUTHORITY TO
APPROVE ON BEHALF OF THE DISTRICT THE TERMS OF SALE OF THE BONDS
AND THE OFFERING DOCUMENTS FOR THE BONDS; ESTABLISHING CERTAIN
PARAMETERS FOR THE APPROVAL OF SUCH MATTERS BY THE PRICING
OFFICER, INCLUDING THE PURPOSES TO BE UNDERTAKEN WITH PROCEEDS;
APPROVING THE USE OF A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT AND AN
ESCROW AGREEMENT; ENGAGING BOND COUNSEL; PLEDGING REVENUES AND
PLEDGED FUNDS FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS; AND ENACTING OTHER
PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
ECTOR COUNTY §
ODESSA JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT §

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the "Board") of Odessa Junior College District (the
"Issuer"), has heretofore established a financing system for the issuance of obligations secured by
a first lien on and pledge of certain pledged revenues of the Issuer (the "Consolidated Fund Revenue
Financing System"); and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is advisable and in the best interests of the
Issuer to issue bonds in accordance with the Consolidated Fund Revenue System to finance the
construction of a health science building on its campus in Odessa, Texas (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Board has previously issued the Issuer's Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds,
Series 2012 (the "Series 2012 Bonds") pursuant to the Consolidated Fund Revenue System, which
bonds are secured by a first lien on and pledge of the Issuer's "Gross Revenues" and amounts on
deposit in the "Pledged Funds" (as such terms are hereinafter defined) created for the benefit of the
Series 2012 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, in addition to the issuance of bonds hereunder to pay costs of the Project, the
Issuer now desires to authorize the refunding of all or part of the Series 2012 Bonds (as candidates
for refunding, the Series 2012 Bonds are herein referred to as the "Eligible Refunded Obligations,"
and those Eligible Refunded Obligations selected by the Pricing Officer in the Pricing Certificate,
each as defined below, to be refunded are herein referred to as the "Refunded Obligations"); and

WHEREAS, all the Eligible Refunded Obligations mature or are subject to redemption prior
to maturity within 20 years of the date of the bonds hereinafter authorized; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code ("Chapter 1207"), authorizes the Issuer
to issue refunding bonds and to deposit the proceeds from the sale thereof, and any other available
funds or resources, directly with any paying agent for the refunded obligations, or a trust company
or commercial bank that does not act as a depository for the Issuer, and such deposit, if made before

47



such payment dates and in sufficient amounts, shall constitute the making of firm banking and
financial arrangements for the discharge and final payment of the refunded obligations; and

WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interests of the Issuer
to issue the bonds hereinafter authorized for the refunding purpose described above in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 1207 and in accordance with Section 130.123, Texas Education Code,
as amended, and, in addition, for the purpose of funding the costs of the Project in accordance with
the provisions of Sections 130.123 and 130.125, Texas Education Code, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interests of the Issuer
to issue the Bonds for the purposes stated above, and to delegate to the Pricing Officer the authority
to act on behalf of the Issuer in selling and delivering the bonds authorized herein and setting the
dates, price, interest rates, interest payment periods and other procedures relating thereto, as
hereinafter specified, with such information and terms to be included in a Pricing Certificate to be
executed by the Pricing Officer; and

WHEREAS, the Bonds are to be issued and delivered pursuant to laws of the State of Texas,
including particularly Chapter 1207 and Chapter 130, Texas Education Code, as amended, and
specifically Sections 130.123 and 130.125 thereof  and other applicable laws; and

WHEREAS, the capitalized terms used in this Resolution and not otherwise defined shall
have the meaning given in Section 7 of this Resolution.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF ODESSA
JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT, THAT:

Section 1.  RECITALS, AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE BONDS.

(a)  The recitals set forth in the preamble hereof are incorporated herein and shall have the
same force and effect as if set forth in this Section.  

(b)  The bonds of the Odessa Junior College District (the "Bonds") are hereby authorized to
be issued and delivered in the maximum aggregate principal amounts set forth in Section 3 hereof
for the purpose of financing the construction of a health science building on its campus in Odessa,
Texas, for refunding the Refunded Obligations and to pay the costs incurred in connection with the
issuance of the Bonds.

(c) References herein to Sections shall mean the Sections of this Resolution.

Section 2.  DESIGNATION OF THE BONDS.   Each bond issued pursuant to this
Resolution shall be designated: "ODESSA JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT CONSOLIDATED
FUND REVENUE [IMPROVEMENT][REFUNDING] BONDS, [TAXABLE] [TAX-EXEMPT]
SERIES 2021" (or as otherwise may be designated in the Pricing Certificate), and initially there shall
be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable

2

48



to the respective registered owners thereof (with the initial bonds being made payable to the
Purchaser), or to the registered assignee or assignees of said bonds or any portion or portions thereof
(in each case, the "Registered Owner"). The Bonds shall be in the respective denominations and
principal amounts, shall be numbered, shall mature and be payable on the date or dates in each of
the years and in the principal amounts or amounts due at maturity, as applicable, and shall bear
interest to their respective dates of maturity or redemption prior to maturity at the rates per annum,
as set forth in the Pricing Certificate.

Section 3.  DELEGATION TO PRICING OFFICER.

(a)  As authorized by Section 130.125(c), Texas Education Code, as amended, the President
of Odessa College or the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer are each individually hereby
authorized to act on behalf of the Issuer in selling and delivering the Bonds (of which officers, the
officer executing the Pricing Certificate shall be hereinafter referred to as, and shall for all purposes
be, the "Pricing Officer").  The delegation made hereby shall expire if not exercised by the Pricing
Officer, on or prior to a date that is six months after the date of adoption of this Resolution. The
Bonds shall be designated and bear the title set forth in Section 2 hereof or such other title as may
be deemed appropriate by the Pricing Officer.  The determinations of the Pricing Officer with
respect to the sale of the Bonds shall be set forth in a Pricing Certificate, which certificate shall
supplement this Resolution.  

(b)  The authority of the Pricing Officer with respect to the sale of the Bonds to finance costs
of the Project are subject to the following parameters:

(1) the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds issued under this clause (b) to finance costs
of the Project shall not exceed $35,000,000; 

(2) proceeds of the Bonds shall be used for the purposes financing the Project, may include
funding a debt service reserve fund associated with the issuance of such Bonds, if deemed
in the best interest of the financing by the Pricing Officer, and to pay the costs of issuing
such Bonds;

(3) the sale price of such Bonds issued under this clause (b) shall be not less than 95% of the
initial aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon, if any;

(4) the latest date for a Stated Maturity of the Bonds issued under this clause (b) shall not
be later than July 1, 2036; and

(5) the maximum interest rate of any Bonds issued under this clause (b) shall not exceed
3.50% per annum.

(c)  The authority of the Pricing Officer with respect to the sale of the Bonds to refund
Eligible Refunded Obligations are subject to the following parameters:

3

49



(1) the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds issued under this clause (c) to refund
Eligible Refunded Obligations shall not exceed $5,000,000; 

(2) proceeds of the Bonds issued under this clause (c), may include funding a debt service
reserve fund associated with the issuance of such Bonds, if deemed in the best interest of the
financing by the Pricing Officer, and to pay the costs of issuing such Bonds;

(3) the sale price of such Bonds issued under this clause (c) shall be not less than 95% of the
initial aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon, if any;

(4) the latest date for a Stated Maturity of the Bonds issued under this clause (c) shall not be
later than July 1, 2034; 

(5) the maximum interest rate of any Bonds issued under this clause (c) shall not exceed
3.00% per annum; and

(6) the refunding achieved by each series of Bonds sold for refunding purposes in
accordance with this clause (c) must produce debt service savings of at least 5% measured
on a present value basis as a percentage of the principal amount of the Refunded Obligations
refunded with the applicable series of Bonds, and with such present value savings being net
of any contribution of the Issuer to the refunding and net of the costs of issuance of such
Bonds.

(d) In addition to such other delegations as may be set forth above and elsewhere in this
Resolution, the Pricing Officer shall determine or provide for the following terms of the Bonds and
the other agreements and actions pertaining to the issuance and sale of the Bonds:

(1) determine whether Bonds shall be issued solely for financing costs of the Project or for
refunding Eligible Refunding Obligations or for a combination of such purposes and whether
Bonds shall be issued as a single series or in multiple series for such purposes and if Bonds
are issued for the refunding purpose, determine which of the Eligible Refunded Obligations
are to be selected as Refunded Obligations to be refunded and establish the terms of the
defeasance and/or redemption thereof;

(2) determine the Paying Agent/Registrar for each series and the Escrow Agent, if required
in connection with the refunding of the Refunded Obligations, and the Pricing Officer or
other Authorized Officer may execute each Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement (hereinafter
defined) and the Escrow Agreement (hereinafter defined) on behalf of the Issuer;

(3) determine whether a book-entry-only system shall not be used with respect to the one or
more series of Bonds;

4

50



(4) determine the Bond Date and the Record Date for each series, 

(5) determine any additional or different designation or title by which the Bonds of each
series shall be known;

(6) determine the principal amount of the Bonds to be issued subject to the respective
parameters of clauses (b) and (c) above;

(7) determine whether the Bonds of a series shall be issued as obligations the interest on
which is exempt from federal income taxation or as obligations the interest on which is
subject to federal income taxation (in which event, the covenants set forth in Section 25 shall
not be applicable to such taxable Bonds; 

(8) determine whether the Bonds of a series shall be sold by private placement or by
competitive or negotiated sale to the Purchasers and the terms to be included in a Purchase
Agreement for the series, including the price to be paid for the Bonds subject to the
parameters of clauses (b) and (c) above;

(9) determine the rate or rates of interest to be borne by the Bonds of a series subject to the
parameters of clauses (b) and (c) above;

(10) determine the amount of each maturity of principal of the Bonds of a series and the
Stated Maturity or Stated Maturities subject to the parameters of clauses (b) and (c) above;

(11) determine the interest accrual and payment dates and periods for the Bonds of a series; 

(12) determine the dates, price and terms, if any, upon and at which the Bonds of a series
shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Issuer and/or any
mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions; 

(13) determine whether municipal bond insurance for the Bonds of a series is beneficial and
shall be obtained and if so, approve modifications to this Resolution and execute such
instruments, documents and agreements as may be necessary with respect thereto (any such
modifications shall be set forth in the Pricing Certificate);

(14) determine whether to fund a debt service reserve fund for the Bonds of a series, and if
so, whether to fund it with (A) proceeds of the Bonds of such series, (B) providing for the
accumulation over time from revenues of the Issuer, (C) a Reserve Fund Obligation or (D)
some combination of (A), (B) and (C) (if a debt service reserve fund is not so created with
respect to the Bonds of a series, the provisions of Section 12 shall not be applicable to the
Bonds;

5

51



(15) determine whether modifications should be made to the Issuer's continuing disclosure
undertaking as set forth in Section 31 for Bonds of a series (any such completions or
modifications shall be set forth in the Pricing Certificate); and

(16) determine whether the types of securities and obligations that may be used as
Defeasance Securities for Bonds of a series shall be limited.  

In addition to the foregoing authorizations, the Pricing Officer and other Authorized Officers are
authorized to execute on behalf of the Issuer all required documents required in connection with the
issuance of the Bonds, including the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, the Escrow Agreement (if
required in connection with the refunding of Refunded Obligations) and the Purchase Agreement,
and, in general, the Pricing Officer shall make all determinations and effect all other matters relating
to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds.  The Pricing Officer is further authorized, for and
on behalf of the Issuer, to approve any notice of sale, official statement or other offering documents,
and any supplements thereto relating to the Bonds. 

(e)  It is hereby found and determined that the refunding of the Refunded Obligations is
advisable and necessary in order to restructure the debt service requirements of the Issuer, and that
the debt service requirements on the Bonds issued for refunding purposes will be less than those on
the Refunded Obligations, resulting in a reduction in the amount of principal and interest which
otherwise would be payable.  The Refunded Obligations are subject to redemption, at the option of
the Issuer, and the Pricing Officer is hereby authorized to cause all of the Refunded Obligations to
be called for redemption on the respective date or dates consistent with the savings analysis set forth
in Section 3(c) hereof, and the proper notices of such redemption to be given, and in each case at
a redemption price of par, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  In furtherance of
authority granted by Section 1207.007(b), Texas Government Code, the Pricing Officer is further
authorized to enter into and execute on behalf of the Issuer with the escrow agent named therein, an
escrow agreement, in substantially the form presented to the Board at the meeting at which this
Order was adopted and as shall be approved by the Pricing Officer, which escrow agreement will
provide for the payment in full of the Refunded Obligations (the "Escrow Agreement").  In addition,
the Pricing Officer is authorized to purchase such securities with proceeds of Bonds issued for
refunding purposes, including, without limitation, to execute such subscriptions for the purchase of
the United States Treasury Securities State and Local Government Series or to purchase other
eligible securities for the defeasance of the Refunded Obligations through direct purchase from the
U.S. Treasury or through open market purchase, and to transfer and deposit such cash from available
funds of the Issuer, as may be necessary or appropriate for the escrow fund described in the Escrow
Agreement.

(f)  In satisfaction of Section 1201.022(a)(3)(B), Texas Government Code, the Board hereby
determines that the delegation of the authority to the Pricing Officer to approve the final terms of
the Bonds set forth in this Resolution is, and the decisions made by the Pricing Officer pursuant to
such delegated authority and incorporated into the Pricing Certificate will be, in the Issuer's best
interests, and the Pricing Officer is hereby authorized to make and include in the Pricing Certificate
a finding to that effect.

6

52



Section 4.  CHARACTERISTICS OF THE BONDS.

(a)  Registration, Transfer, Conversion and Exchange.  The Issuer shall keep or cause to be
kept at the designated office the bank or banks named in the Pricing Certificate as the paying
agent/registrar for one or more series of Bonds (the "Paying Agent/Registrar") books or records for
the registration of the transfer, conversion and exchange of the Bonds (the "Registration Books"),
and the Issuer hereby appoints the Paying Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer agent to keep
such books or records and make such registrations of transfers, conversions and exchanges under
such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and Paying Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall make such registrations, transfers, conversions and exchanges as herein
provided within three days of presentation in due and proper form.  The Paying Agent/Registrar
shall obtain and record in the Registration Books the address of the Registered Owner of each Bond
to which payments with respect to the Bonds shall be mailed, as herein provided; but it shall be the
duty of each Registered Owner to notify the Paying Agent/Registrar in writing of the address to
which payments shall be mailed, and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless such notice
has been given.  The Issuer shall have the right to inspect the Registration Books during regular
business hours of the Paying Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep
the Registration Books confidential and, unless otherwise required by law, shall not permit their
inspection by any other entity.  The Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar's standard or
customary fees and charges for making such registration, transfer, conversion, exchange and
delivery of a substitute Bond or Bonds.  Registration of assignments, transfers, conversions and
exchanges of Bonds shall be made in the manner provided and with the effect stated in the FORM
OF BOND set forth in this Resolution.  Each substitute Bond shall bear a letter and/or number to
distinguish it from each other Bond.

(b)  Authentication.  Except as provided in Section 4(e) hereof, an authorized representative
of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Bond, date and manually sign
said Bond, and no such Bond shall be deemed to be issued or outstanding unless such Bond is so
executed.  The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall cancel all paid Bonds and Bonds surrendered
for conversion and exchange.  No additional ordinances, orders or resolutions need be passed or
adopted by the governing body of the Issuer or any other body or person so as to accomplish the
foregoing conversion and exchange of any Bond or portion thereof, and the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall provide for the printing, execution and delivery of the substitute Bonds in the manner
prescribed herein.  Pursuant to Subchapter D, Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, the duty of
conversion and exchange of Bonds as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar,
and, upon the execution of said Bond, the converted and exchanged Bond shall be valid,
incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with the same effect as the Bonds which
initially were issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution, approved by the Attorney General,
and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts.

(c)  Payment of Bonds and Interest.  The Issuer hereby further appoints the Paying
Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the applicable
series of Bonds, all as provided in this Resolution.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep proper
records of all payments made by the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the

7

53



Bonds, and of all conversions and exchanges of Bonds, and all replacements of Bonds, as provided
in this Resolution.  However, in the event of a nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date,
and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a "Special Record
Date") will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such
interest have been received from the Issuer.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled
payment date of the past due interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall
be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first-
class postage prepaid, to the address of each Registered Owner appearing on the Registration Books
at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.

(d)  Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar.  The Issuer covenants with the Registered Owners
of the Bonds that at all times while the Bonds are outstanding the Issuer will provide a competent
and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution or other agency to act as and perform
the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds under this Resolution, and that the Paying
Agent/Registrar for a series of Bonds will be one entity.  The Issuer reserves the right to, and may,
at its option, change the applicable Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 50 days written notice
to the Paying Agent/Registrar, to be effective not later than 45 days prior to the next principal or
interest payment date after such notice.  In the event that the entity at any time acting as Paying
Agent/Registrar (or its successor by merger, acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise
cease to act as such, the Issuer covenants that promptly it will appoint a competent and legally
qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act as Paying Agent/Registrar
under this Resolution.  Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying
Agent/Registrar promptly shall transfer and deliver the Registration Books (or a copy thereof), along
with all other pertinent books and records relating to the Bonds, to the new Paying Agent/Registrar
designated and appointed by the Issuer.  Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Issuer
promptly will cause a written notice thereof to be sent by the new Paying Agent/Registrar to each
Registered Owner of the Bonds, by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, which notice also
shall give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.  By accepting the position and performing
as such, each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this
Resolution, and a certified copy of this Resolution shall be delivered to each Paying Agent/Registrar.

(e)  General Characteristics of the Bonds.  The Bonds (i) shall be issued in fully registered
form, without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Bonds to be payable only
to the Registered Owners thereof, (ii) may and shall be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities
(notice of which shall be given to the Paying Agent/Registrar by the Issuer at least 50 days prior to
any such redemption date), (iii) may be transferred and assigned, (iv) may be converted and
exchanged for other Bonds, (v) shall have the characteristics, (vi) shall be signed, sealed, executed
and authenticated, (vii) the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable, and (viii) shall
be administered and the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Issuer shall have certain duties and
responsibilities with respect to the Bonds, all as provided, and in the manner and to the effect as
required or indicated, in the FORM OF BOND set forth in this Resolution.  The Bonds initially
issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution is not required to be, and shall not be, authenticated
by the Paying Agent/Registrar, but on each substitute Bond issued in conversion of and exchange
for any Bond or Bonds issued under this Resolution the Paying Agent/Registrar shall execute the

8

54



Paying Agent/registrar's Authentication Certificate, in the FORM OF BOND set forth in this
Resolution.

(f)  Book-Entry Only System.  Subject to any contrary statement that may be contained in
a Pricing Certificate, the Bonds issued in exchange for the Bonds initially issued to the purchaser
specified in the Pricing Certificate shall be initially issued in the form of a separate single fully
registered Bond for each of the maturities thereof.  Upon initial issuance, the ownership of each such
Bond shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company
of New York ("DTC"), and except as provided in subsection (g) hereof, all of the outstanding Bonds
shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

(g)  Registration and Payment of DTC Bonds.  With respect to Bonds registered in the name
of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no
responsibility or obligation to any securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created ("DTC Participant")
to hold securities to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC
Participants or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the
Bonds.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the Issuer and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the
Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than a Registered Owner
of Bonds, as shown on the Registration Books, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, or (iii) the
payment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than a Registered Owner of Bonds, as
shown in the Registration Books of any amount with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the contrary, the Issuer and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name each Bond is
registered in the Registration Books as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of payment
of principal and interest with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of registering transfers with
respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay
all principal of and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of the Registered Owners, as
shown in the Registration Books as provided in this Resolution, or their respective attorneys duly
authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and
discharge the Issuer's obligations with respect to payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds
to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person other than a Registered Owner, as shown in the
Registration Books, shall receive a Bond certificate evidencing the obligation of the Issuer to make
payments of principal and interest pursuant to this Resolution.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying
Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee
in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions in this Resolution with respect to interest
checks being mailed to the Registered Owner at the close of business on the Record date, the words
"Cede & Co." in this Resolution shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(h)  Successor Securities Depository; Transfers Outside Book-Entry Only System.  In the
event that the Issuer determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its responsibilities described
herein and in the representation letter of the Issuer to DTC or that it is in the best interest of the

9

55



beneficial owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, the Issuer shall (i)
appoint a successor securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17A of the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of
such successor securities depository and transfer one or more separate Bonds to such successor
securities depository or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of
Bonds and transfer one or more separate Bonds to DTC Participants having Bonds credited to their
DTC accounts.  In such event, the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the
Registration Books in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the
name of the successor securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names
Registered Owners transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the
provisions of this Resolution.

(i)  Payments to Cede & Co.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the
contrary, so long as any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all
payments with respect to principal of and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such
Bond shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the representation letter of
the Issuer to DTC.

(j)  Cancellation of Initial Bonds.  On the closing date, one initial Bond representing the
entire principal amount of the Bonds of a series, payable in stated installments to the order of the
initial purchaser of such Bonds or its designee, executed by manual or facsimile signature of the
Chair and Secretary of the Board, approved by the Attorney General of Texas, and registered and
manually signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State, will be delivered to such
purchaser or its designee.  Upon payment for the initial Bond of a series, the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall cancel the initial Bond and deliver to The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") on behalf of
such purchaser one registered definitive Bond for each year of maturity of the Bonds of such series,
in the aggregate principal amount of all of the Bonds for such maturity, registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  To the extent that the Paying Agent/Registrar is eligible to
participate in DTC's FAST System, pursuant to an agreement between the Paying Agent/Registrar
and DTC, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall hold the definitive Bonds in safekeeping for DTC.

(j) Conditional Notice of Redemption.  With respect to any optional redemption of the
Bonds, unless certain prerequisites to such redemption required by the Resolution have been met
and moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be
redeemed shall have been received by the Paying Agent/Registrar prior to the giving of such notice
of redemption, such notice shall state that said redemption may, at the option of the Issuer, be
conditional upon the satisfaction of such prerequisites and receipt of such moneys by the Paying
Agent/Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption, or upon any prerequisite set forth
in such notice of redemption.  If a conditional notice of redemption is given and such prerequisites
to the redemption and sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect,
the Issuer shall not redeem such Bonds and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice, in the
manner in which the notice of redemption was given, to the effect that the Bonds have not been
redeemed.

10

56



Section 5.  FORM OF BONDS.  The form of the Bonds, including form of the initial Bond,
the form of Paying Agent/Registrar's Authentication Certificate, the form of Assignment and the
form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State to be attached
to the Bonds initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution, shall be, respectively,
substantially as follows, with such appropriate variations, omissions, or insertions as are permitted
or required by this Resolution.  The FORM OF BOND shall be completed with information set forth
in the Pricing Certificate and shall be attached to the Pricing Certificate as an exhibit thereto.

(a)  Form of Bond.

NO. R- UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TEXAS

ODESSA JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT
CONSOLIDATED FUND REVENUE [IMPROVEMENT and/or

REFUNDING] BOND [TAXABLE or TAX-EXEMPT] 
SERIES 2021

PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT
$________

INTEREST 
RATE ISSUANCE DATE

MATURITY 
DATE CUSIP NO.

REGISTERED OWNER:

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS

ON THE MATURITY DATE specified above, ODESSA JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT,
in Ector County, Texas (the "Issuer"), being a political subdivision of the State of Texas, hereby
promises to pay to the Registered Owner set forth above, or registered assigns (hereinafter called
the "registered owner") the principal amount set forth above, and to pay interest thereon from
___________, on ___________ and on each ___________and __________thereafter to the maturity
date specified above, or the date of redemption prior to maturity, at the interest rate per annum
specified above; except that if this Bond is required to be authenticated and the date of its
authentication is later than the first Record Date (hereinafter defined), such principal amount shall
bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the date of authentication, unless such
date of authentication is after any Record Date but on or before the next following interest payment
date, in which case such principal amount shall bear interest from such next following interest
payment date; provided, however, that if on the date of authentication hereof the interest on the
Bond or Bonds, if any, for which this Bond is being exchanged or converted from is due but has not
been paid, then this Bond shall bear interest from the date to which such interest has been paid in
full.

11

57



THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Bond are payable in lawful money of the
United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  The principal of this Bond shall
be paid to the registered owner hereof upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity, or
upon the date fixed for its redemption prior to maturity, at a corporate trust office of
_______________, in _______, _______, which is the "Paying Agent/Registrar" for this Bond.  The
payment of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered
owner hereof on each interest payment date by check or draft, dated as of such interest payment date,
drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the Issuer required by
the order authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the "Bond Resolution") to be on deposit with the
Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check or draft shall be
sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each such
interest payment date, to the registered owner hereof, at its address as it appeared on the _____ day
of the month next preceding each such date (the "Record Date"), on the Registration Books kept by
the Paying Agent/Registrar, as hereinafter described.  In addition, interest may be paid by such other
method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the
registered owner.  In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for
30 days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a "Special Record Date") will be
established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have
been received from the Issuer.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date
of the past due interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least
five business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first-class postage
prepaid, to the address of each owner of a Bond appearing on the Registration Books at the close
of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.

ANY ACCRUED INTEREST due at maturity or upon the redemption of this Bond prior to
maturity as provided herein shall be paid to the registered owner upon presentation and surrender
of this Bond for payment at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The
Issuer covenants with the registered owner of this Bond that on or before each principal payment
date and interest payment date for this Bond it will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar,
from the "Interest and Sinking Fund" created by the Bond Resolution, the amounts required to
provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, when due.

IF THE DATE for any payment due on this Bond shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal
holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the principal corporate trust office
of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the
date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal
holiday, or day on which banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall
have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due.

THIS BOND is one of a series of Bonds dated as of _________, authorized in accordance
with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas in the principal amount of $_____________ for
the purpose of [providing funds to refund a portion of the Issuer's outstanding revenue bonds
[and/or] $______________ for the purpose of the acquisition, construction, renovation and

12

58



equipment of a health science building on its campus in Odessa, Texas], [to fund a debt service
reserve fund for the Bonds of this series] and to pay the costs incurred in connection with the
issuance of the Bonds.

THE BONDS of this series maturing on and after ___________ may be redeemed on
____________, or on any date thereafter, in whole or in part prior to their scheduled maturities, at
the option of the Issuer, with funds derived from any available and lawful source, as a whole, or in
part (provided that a portion of a Bond may be redeemed only in an integral multiple of $5,000 of
principal amount).  The Bonds selected for redemption shall be redeemed at the redemption price
of the principal amount of such Bonds called for redemption, plus accrued interest thereon to the
date fixed for redemption.  If less than all Bonds of a maturity are to be redeemed, the particular
Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Paying Agent/Registrar at random and by lot.

IN ADDITION TO THE FOREGOING OPTIONAL REDEMPTION, THE BONDS
scheduled to mature on _____________ in the years _________________________ ( the "Term
Bonds") are subject to scheduled mandatory redemption by the Paying Agent/Registrar by lot, or
by any other customary method that results in a random selection, at a price equal to the principal
amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, out of moneys available for such
purpose in the interest and sinking fund for the Bonds, on the dates and in the respective principal
amounts, set forth in the following schedule:

Bonds Maturing
     , 2     

Bonds Maturing
     , 2     

Year 
Principal
Amount Year 

Principal
Amount

  (1) Final maturity of Bond.

The principal amount of the Term Bonds required to be redeemed pursuant to the operation of such
mandatory sinking fund shall be reduced by the principal amount of any Term Bonds that, at least
45 days prior to the mandatory sinking fund redemption date, shall have been (1) purchased by the
Issuer and delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for redemption or (2) redeemed pursuant to the
optional redemption provision described below and delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for
cancellation.

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or portions thereof
prior to maturity, the Issuer shall cause written notice of such redemption to be sent by United States
mail, first class, postage prepaid, to each Registered Owner of a Bond to be redeemed, in whole or

13

59



in part, at the address of the Registered Owner appearing on the registration books of the Paying
Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the business day next preceding the date of mailing of
such notice.  Any notice of redemption so mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly
given irrespective of whether received by the Registered Owner.  By the date fixed for any such
redemption, due provision shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the
required redemption price for the Bonds or portions thereof that are to be so redeemed.  If such
written notice of redemption is mailed and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided
above, the Bonds or portions thereof that are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be
treated as redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, and they shall not bear interest after the date
fixed for redemption, and they shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the
Registered Owner to receive the redemption price from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds
provided for such payment.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed a substitute Bond or Bonds
having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or
denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000, at the written request of the Registered Owner,
and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the
Registered Owner upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Issuer, all as
provided in the Bond Resolution. 

ALL BONDS OF THIS SERIES are issuable solely as fully registered Bonds, without
interest coupons, with respect to Bonds, in the denomination of any integral multiple of $5,000.  As
provided in the Bond Resolution, this Bond may, at the request of the registered owner or the
assignee or assignees hereof, be assigned, transferred, converted into and exchanged for a like
aggregate amount of fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the appropriate
registered owner, assignee or assignees, as the case may be, having any authorized denomination
or denominations as requested in writing by the appropriate registered owner, assignee or assignees,
as the case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all
in accordance with the form and procedures set forth in the Bond Resolution.  Among other
requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Bond must be presented and surrendered to the
Paying Agent/Registrar, together with proper instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee
of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment of this Bond or any
portion or portions hereof in any authorized denomination to the assignee or assignees in whose
name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is or are to be registered.  The form
of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond may be executed by the registered owner to
evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is not exclusive, and other instruments of
assignment satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar may be used to evidence the assignment of
this Bond or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by the registered owner.  The Paying
Agent/Registrar's reasonable standard or customary fees and charges for assigning, transferring,
converting and exchanging any Bond or portion thereof will be paid by the Issuer.  In any
circumstance, any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto shall be
paid by the one requesting such assignment, transfer, conversion or exchange, as a condition
precedent to the exercise of such privilege.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to
make any such transfer or exchange with respect to Bonds (i) during the period commencing with
the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of business on the next

14

60



following principal or interest payment date, or (ii) with respect to any Bond or any portion thereof
called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its redemption date.

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the Issuer, resigns,
or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Bond Resolution that it promptly
will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and cause written notice thereof
to be mailed to the registered owners of the Bonds.

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited, and covenanted that this Bond has been duly and validly
authorized, issued, and delivered; that all acts, conditions, and things required or proper to be
performed, exist, and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance, and delivery of this
Bond have been performed, existed, and been done in accordance with law; that this Bond is secured
by, and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the Issuer's "Gross Revenues" and amounts on
deposit in the "Pledged Funds" created for the benefit of the Bonds (as such terms are defined in the
Bond Resolution).  

THE BONDS ARE SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUER PAYABLE FROM THE
GROSS REVENUES AND AMOUNTS ON DEPOSIT IN THE PLEDGED FUNDS, AND THE
REGISTERED OWNERS THEREOF SHALL NEVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO DEMAND
PAYMENT OUT OF FUNDS RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY TAXATION.

THE ISSUER HAS RESERVED the right in the Bond Resolution, subject to certain
conditions set forth therein, to issue obligations or incur indebtedness from time to time in the future
on a parity with the Bonds with respect to the pledge of and lien on the Gross Revenues which
secures the Bonds.  The Issuer may also issue obligations or incur indebtedness which is secured on
a junior and subordinate lien with respect to the Gross Revenues.  The Bond Resolution further
provides that the Issuer may create a debt service reserve fund and fund it or provide for it to be
funded in connection with the issuance of any obligations or the incurrence of any indebtedness
which possesses a lien on and pledge of the Gross Revenues on a parity with the Bonds, and that
such reserve shall secure only the obligations or indebtedness for which it was funded or is to be
funded.  The Issuer [has/has not] created a debt service reserve fund for the benefit of the Bonds
[and such fund secures only the Bonds and no series of Parity Obligations.]

THE ISSUER ALSO HAS RESERVED THE RIGHT to amend the Bond Resolution as
provided therein, and under some (but not all) circumstances amendments thereto must be approved
by the Registered Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds.

BY BECOMING the Registered Owner of this Bond, the Registered Owner thereby
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Bond Resolution, agrees to be bound by such
terms and provisions, acknowledges that the Bond Resolution is duly recorded and available for
inspection in the official minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that
the terms and provisions of this Bond and the Bond Resolution constitute a contract between each
Registered Owner hereof and the Issuer.

15

61



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed with the manual or
facsimile signature of the Chair of the Board of Trustees of the Issuer, and countersigned with the
manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the Issuer, and the official
seal of the Issuer has been duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this Bond.

Secretary, Board of Trustees Chair, Board of Trustees

 (SEAL)

(b)  Form of Paying Agent/Registrar's Authentication Certificate

 PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE
(To be executed if this Bond is not accompanied by an executed Registration Certificate 

of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas)

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Bond
Resolution described in the text of this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion or
replacement of, or in exchange for, a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of a Series which
originally was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

Date of authentication: _________________.

_____________________, 
________, _______
Paying Agent/Registrar

By______________________________________
Authorized Signatory

(c)  Form of Assignment:

ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

Please insert Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number of Transferee

16

62



Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

, attorney, to register the transfer of the within
Bond

 on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:  _________________.

Signature Guaranteed:

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by
an eligible guarantor institution participating in
a securities transfer association recognized
signature guarantee program.

NOTICE: The signature above must correspond
with the name of the Registered Owner as it
appears upon the front of this Bond in every
particular, without alteration or enlargement or
any change whatsoever.

(d)  Form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts:

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF
COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER §
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS § REGISTER NO. ____________
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS §

I hereby certify that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity, and approved by
the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Bond has been registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

WITNESS MY SIGNATURE AND SEAL this _________________.

______________________________________
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas

(COMPTROLLER'S SEAL)

(e)  Insertions for the initial Bond.

(i)  The initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in paragraph (a) of this Section,
except that:

17

63



(A)  immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings "INTEREST
RATE" and "MATURITY DATE" shall both be completed with the words "As
shown below" and "CUSIP NO. _____" shall be deleted.

(B)  the first paragraph shall be deleted and the following will be inserted:

"ODESSA JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT (the "Issuer"), being a political subdivision
located in Ector County, Texas, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner specified above,
or registered assigns (hereinafter called the "Registered Owner"), on __________ in the years, in
the principal installments and bearing interest at the per annum rates set forth in the following
schedule:

Years of 
Maturity

Principal
Installments

Interest 
Rates

(Information for the Bonds from the Pricing Certificate to be inserted.)

The Issuer promises to pay interest on the unpaid principal amount hereof (calculated on the basis
of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) from _________ at the respective Interest Rate per
annum specified above.  Interest is payable on __________, and on each __________ and
__________ thereafter to the date of payment of the principal installment specified above, or the
date of redemption prior to maturity; except, that if this Bond is required to be authenticated and the
date of its authentication is later than the first Record Date (hereinafter defined), such principal
amount shall bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the date of authentication,
unless such date of authentication is after any Record Date but on or before the next following
interest payment date, in which case such principal amount shall bear interest from such next
following interest payment date; provided, however, that if on the date of authentication hereof the
interest on the Bond or Bonds, if any, for which this Bond is being exchanged is due but has not
been paid, then this Bond shall bear interest from the date to which such interest has been paid in
full."

(C)  The initial Bond shall be numbered "T-1".

Section 7.  DEFINITIONS.  In addition to terms defined elsewhere in this Resolution, unless
the context shall indicate a contrary meaning or intent, the terms below defined, for all purposes of
this Resolution, or any resolution amendatory or supplemental hereto, shall be construed, are used,
and are intended to have meanings as follows:

"Act" - Chapter 130, Texas Education Code, specifically Sections 130.123 and 130.125
thereof.

"Amortization Installment" - With respect to any Term Bonds of any series of Parity
Obligations, the amount of money which is required to be deposited into a mandatory redemption
account for retirement of such Term Bonds (whether at maturity or by mandatory redemption and

18

64



including redemption premium, if any) provided that the total Amortization Installments for such
Term Bonds shall be sufficient to provide for retirement of the aggregate principal amount of such
Term Bonds.  

"Annual Debt Service Requirements" - As of the date of calculation, the principal of and
interest on all Parity Obligations coming due at Maturity or Stated Maturity (or that could come due
on demand of the owner thereof other than by acceleration or other demand conditioned upon default
by the Issuer on such debt, or be payable in respect of any required purchase of such debt by the
Issuer) in such Fiscal Year, and, for such purposes, any one or more of the following rules shall
apply at the election of the Issuer:

(1) Committed Take Out.  If the Board has entered into a Credit Agreement constituting
a binding commitment within normal commercial practice to discharge any of its Funded
Debt at its Stated Maturity (or, if due on demand, at any date on which demand may be
made) or to purchase any of its Funded Debt at any date on which such Funded Debt is
subject to required purchase, all under arrangements whereby the Board's obligation to repay
the amounts advanced for such discharge or purchase constitutes Funded Debt, then the
portion of the Funded Debt committed to be discharged or purchased shall be excluded from
such calculation and the principal of and interest on the Funded Debt incurred for such
discharging or purchase that would be due in the Fiscal Year for which the calculation is
being made, if incurred at the Stated Maturity or purchase date of the Funded Debt to be
discharged or purchased, shall be added; 

(2) Balloon Parity Debt.  If the principal (including the accretion of interest resulting
from original issue discount or compounding of interest) of any series or issue of Funded
Debt due (or payable in respect of any required purchase of such Funded Debt by the Issuer)
in any Fiscal Year either is equal to at least 25% of the total principal (including the
accretion of interest resulting from original issue discount or compounding of interest) of
such Funded Debt or exceeds by more than 50% the greatest amount of principal of such
series or issue of Funded Debt due in any preceding or succeeding Fiscal Year (such
principal due in such Fiscal Year for such series or issue of Funded Debt being referred to
herein and throughout this Resolution as "Balloon Parity Debt"), the amount of principal of
such Balloon Parity Debt taken into account during any Fiscal Year shall be equal to the debt
service calculated using the original principal amount of such Balloon Parity Debt amortized
over the Term of Issue on a level debt service basis at an assumed interest rate equal to the
rate borne by such Balloon Parity Debt on the date of calculation;

(3) Consent Sinking Fund.  In the case of Balloon Parity Debt, if a Designated Financial
Officer shall deliver to the Issuer a certificate providing for the retirement of (and the
instrument creating such Balloon Parity Debt shall permit the retirement of), or for the
accumulation of a sinking fund for (and the instrument creating such Balloon Parity Debt
shall permit the accumulation of a sinking fund for), such Balloon Parity Debt according to
a fixed schedule stated in such certificate ending on or before the Fiscal Year in which such
principal (and premium, if any) is due, then the principal of (and, in the case of retirement,

19

65



or to the extent provided for by the sinking fund accumulation, the premium, if any, and
interest and other debt service charges on) such Balloon Parity Debt shall be computed as
if the same were due in accordance with such schedule, provided that this clause (3) shall
apply only to Balloon Parity Debt for which the installments previously scheduled have been
paid or deposited to the sinking fund established with respect to such debt on or before the
times required by such schedule; and provided further that this clause (3) shall not apply
where the Issuer has elected to apply the rule set forth in clause (2) above;

(4) Prepaid Debt.  Principal of and interest on Parity Obligations, or portions thereof,
shall not be included in the computation of the Annual Debt Service Requirements for any
Fiscal Year for which such principal or interest are payable from funds on deposit or set
aside in trust for the payment thereof at the time of such calculations (including without
limitation capitalized interest and accrued interest so deposited or set aside in trust) with a
financial institution acting as fiduciary with respect to the payment of such debt; and

(5) Variable Rate.  As to any Parity Obligations that bear interest at a variable interest
rate which cannot be ascertained at the time of calculation of the Annual Debt Service
Requirement then, at the option of the Issuer, either (A) an interest rate equal to the average
rate borne by such Parity Obligations (or by comparable debt in the event that such Parity
Obligations has not been outstanding during the preceding 24 months) for any 24 month
period ending within 30 days prior to the date of calculation, or (B) an interest rate equal to
the 30-year Revenue Bond Index (as most recently published in The Bond Buyer), shall be
presumed to apply for all future dates, unless such index is no longer published in The Bond
Buyer, in which case an index of  revenue bonds with maturities of at least 20 years which
is published in a financial newspaper or journal with national circulation may be used for
this purpose (if two Series of Parity Obligations which bear interest at variable interest rate,
or one or more maturities within a Series, of equal par amounts, are issued simultaneously
with inverse floating interest rates providing a composite fixed interest rate for such Parity
Obligations taken as a whole, such composite fixed rate shall be used in determining the
Annual Debt Service Requirement with respect to such Parity Obligations);

(6) Guarantee.  In the case of any guarantee, as described in clause (2) of the definition
of Debt, no obligation will be counted as Parity Obligations for the purpose of the definition
of "Annual Debt Service Requirements" unless the Board has made such guarantee payable
from the Gross Revenues on a parity basis to the lien created on the Gross Revenues hereby
to secure the Bonds, or if the Board does not anticipate in its annual budget that it will make
any payments on the guarantee.  If, however, the guarantee is secured by the Gross
Revenues, as aforesaid, and the Board is making payments on a guarantee or anticipates
doing so in its annual budget, such obligation shall be treated as Parity Obligations and
calculations of annual debt service requirements with respect to such guarantee shall be
made assuming that the Board will make all additional payments due under the guaranteed
obligation.  If the entity whose obligation is guaranteed cures all defaults and the Board no
longer anticipates making payments under the guarantee, the guaranteed obligations shall
not be included in the calculation of Annual Debt Service Requirements; 

20

66



(7) Commercial Paper.  With respect to any Parity Obligations issued in the form of
commercial paper with maturities not exceeding 270 days, the interest on such Parity
Obligations shall be calculated in the manner provided in clause (5) of this definition and the
maturity schedule shall be calculated in the manner provided in clause (2) of this definition;
and

(8) Credit Agreement Payments.  If the Board has entered into a Credit Agreement in
connection with an issue of Debt and secured its obligation under the Credit Agreement from
the Gross Revenues on a parity basis to the lien created on the Gross Revenues hereby to
secure the Bonds, payments due under the Credit Agreement (other than payments for fees
and expenses), for either the Board or the Credit Provider, shall be included in such
calculation, except to the extent that the payments are already taken into account under (1)
through (7) above and any payments otherwise included above under (1) through (7) which
are to be replaced by payments under a Credit Agreement, from either the Board or the
Credit Provider, shall be excluded from such calculation.

With respect to any calculation of historic data, only those payments actually made in the subject
period shall be taken into account in making such calculation and, with respect to prospective
calculations, only those payments reasonably expected to be made in the subject period shall be
taken into account in making the calculation.

"Authorized Officer" – The Chair, the Vice Chair or the Secretary of the Board, the President
of the College or the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer and any other person authorized by official
action of the Board to perform the act or sign the document in question.

"Board" - The Board of Trustees of the Issuer.

"Bond Counsel" - McCall, Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P., or such other firm of attorneys of
nationally recognized standing in the field of law relating to municipal revenue bonds selected by
the Board.

"Bond Date" - The date specified in the Pricing Certificate for the dating of the Bonds.

"Bonds" - The "Odessa Junior College District Consolidated Fund [Improvement and/or
Refunding] Revenue Bonds, [Taxable or Tax-Exempt] Series 2021" (or such other designation as
may be provided in the Pricing Certificate) authorized by this Resolution and all substitute bonds
exchanged therefor, and all other substitute and replacement bonds issued pursuant to this
Resolution; and the term "Bond" means any of the Bonds.

"Business Day" - Any day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or a day on which
banking institutions in The City of New York, New York or in the city where the designated
payment office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order
to close.   

21

67



"Code" - The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and any amendments thereto.

"College" - Odessa College in the City of Odessa, Ector County, Texas, and all present and
future campuses owned or to be owned and operated by the Issuer.

"College Bookstore Revenues" - All of the revenues and income of every nature derived by
the Issuer from the operation and ownership of the bookstore or bookstores now or hereafter owned
and operated by the Issuer, together with all extensions and improvements thereto and replacements
thereof.

"College Cafeteria Revenues" - All of the revenues and income of every nature derived by
the Issuer from the operation and ownership of any and all facilities of the Issuer provided for the
purpose of feeding the students and the faculty of, and visitors to, the Issuer, including without
limitation all cafeterias and all vending machines for the sale of food and other products.

"Credit Agreement" - Collectively, a loan agreement, revolving credit agreement, agreement
establishing a line of credit, letter of credit, reimbursement agreement, insurance contract,
commitments to purchase Parity Obligations, purchase or sale agreements, interest rate swap
agreements, currency exchange agreements, interest rate floor or cap agreements, or commitments
or other contracts or agreements authorized, recognized and approved by the Board as a Credit
Agreement in connection with the authorization, issuance, security, or payment of Parity
Obligations.  

"Credit Facility" -  (i) a policy of insurance or a surety bond, issued by an issuer of policies
of insurance insuring the timely payment of debt service on governmental obligations, provided that
a Rating Agency having an outstanding rating on Parity Obligations would, at the time that such
facility is entered into by the Issuer, rate the Parity Obligations fully insured by a standard policy
issued by the issuer in its two highest generic rating categories for such obligations; and (ii) a letter
or line of credit issued by any financial institution, provided that a Rating Agency having an
outstanding rating on the Parity Obligations would, at the time that such facility is entered into by
the Issuer, rate the parity obligations in its two highest generic rating categories for such obligations
if the letter or line of credit proposed to be issued by such financial institution secured the timely
payment of the entire principal amount of the Parity Obligations and the interest thereon.

"Credit Provider" - Any bank, financial institution, insurance company, surety bond provider,
or other entity which provides, executes, issues, or otherwise is a party to or provider of a Credit
Agreement.

"Debt" - All:

(1)  indebtedness incurred or assumed by the Board for borrowed money (including
indebtedness arising under Credit Agreements) and all other financing obligations of the

22

68



Board that, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, are shown on the
liability side of a balance sheet;

(2)  all other indebtedness (other than indebtedness otherwise treated as Debt hereunder) for
borrowed money or for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of property or
capitalized lease obligations that is guaranteed, directly or indirectly, in any manner by the
Board, or that is in effect guaranteed, directly or indirectly, by the Board through an
agreement, contingent or otherwise, to purchase any such indebtedness or to advance or
supply funds for the payment or purchase of any such indebtedness or to purchase property
or services primarily for the purpose of enabling the debtor or seller to make payment of
such indebtedness, or to assure the owner of the indebtedness against loss, or to supply funds
to or in any other manner invest in the debtor (including any agreement to pay for property
or services irrespective of whether or not such property is delivered or such services are
rendered), or otherwise; and

(3)  all indebtedness secured by any mortgage, lien, charge, encumbrance, pledge or other
security interest upon property owned by the Board whether or not the Board has assumed
or become liable for the payment thereof.

For the purpose of determining the "Debt" of the Board, there shall be excluded any
particular Debt if, upon or prior to the Maturity thereof, there shall have been deposited with the
proper depository (a) in trust the necessary funds (or investments that will provide sufficient funds,
if permitted by the instrument creating such Debt) for the payment, redemption, or satisfaction of
such Debt or (b) evidence of such Debt deposited for cancellation; and thereafter it shall not be
considered Debt.  No item shall be considered Debt unless such item constitutes indebtedness under
generally accepted accounting principles applied on a basis consistent with the financial statements
prepared by or for the benefit of the Board in prior Fiscal Years.

"Defeasance Securities" Any securities and obligations now or hereafter authorized by State
law that are eligible to refund, retire or otherwise discharge obligations such as the Bonds.

"Depository" - Such bank or banks at any time selected by the Board to serve as depository
of the funds of the Issuer.

"Designated Financial Officer" - The Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer or such other
financial or accounting official of the Issuer so designated by the Board. 

"Dormitory System Revenues" - All of the revenues and income of every nature derived by
the Issuer from the operation and ownership of all present and future facilities owned by the Issuer
for the purpose of housing the married and/or unmarried students and or faculty.

"Fiscal Year" - Any twelve consecutive month period established by the Issuer as its "fiscal
year."

23

69



"Funded Debt" - All Parity Obligations created or assumed by the Issuer, either through the
use of the proceeds or by an obligation of the Issuer to pay, guarantee or otherwise provide for the
payment thereof which mature by their terms (in the absence of the exercise of any earlier right of
demand), or that are renewable at the option of the Issuer to a date, more than one year after the
original creation or assumption of such debt by the Issuer. 

"General Use Fee" - The gross collections of a general fee to be fixed, charged and collected
from all students (except any category of students exempt from paying fees by State law or the
Board) regularly enrolled in the Issuer, for the use and availability of the College or other facilities
of the Issuer, as authorized by the Act.

"Gross Revenues" - All revenues of the Issuer, including: (a) the General Use Fee; (b) the
College Bookstore Revenues; (c) the Tuition Pledge; (d) the College Cafeteria Revenues; (e) the
Dormitory System Revenues; (f) the Operating Fees; (g) gifts, grants or donations from any public
or private source that are not restricted or dedicated with respect to their use or purpose; and (h) the
earnings of the Issuer on all investments of the Issuer lawfully available for such purpose; provided,
that, Gross Revenues shall not include; (i) tuition charged in excess of the amount permitted by the
Act to be pledged to the payment of bonds; (ii) ad valorem taxes; and (iii) revenues received from
the State of Texas; and, provided further, that if the Issuer receives an opinion of Bond Counsel to
the effect that ad valorem taxes or revenues received from the State of Texas (or any part of such
revenues) may be used to secure Parity Obligations, and the Board adopts a resolution whereby such
revenues are declared to be included in the definition of Gross Revenues for the benefit of all or any
part of the Issuer's Parity Obligations, such sources shall thereafter constitute Gross Revenues to the
extent included in the resolution of the Board.  Amounts on deposit in a Pledged Fund, and the
proceeds of the investment thereof, secure the Parity Obligations for which such Pledged Fund was
created, and do not constitute Gross Revenues for the purpose of securing other Parity Obligations.

"Issuer" - The Odessa Junior College District, and, where appropriate, the Board thereof.

"Maturity" - When used with respect to any debt, the date on which the principal of such debt
or any installment thereof becomes due and payable as therein provided, whether at the Stated
Maturity thereof or by declaration of acceleration, call for redemption, or otherwise.

"Non-Recourse Debt" - Any Debt secured by a lien (other than a lien on Gross Revenues or
Pledged Funds), liability for which is effectively limited to the property subject to such lien with no
recourse, directly or indirectly, to any other revenue producing property of the Issuer that generates
the Gross Revenues securing Parity Obligations; provided, however, that such Debt is being incurred
in connection with the acquisition of property only, which property is not, at the time of such
occurrence, owned by the Issuer and being used in the operations of the Issuer. 

"Operating Fees" - Any and all rentals, rates, charges, and or fees that are additional to the
General Use Fees, the College Bookstore Revenues, the College Cafeteria Revenues, and the
Dormitory System Revenues, and the Tuition Pledge, that may be collected from students and others
for the occupancy, use, and/or availability of all or any part of the Issuer's property, buildings,

24

70



structures, activities, operations, or facilities of any nature or kind, that are authorized by the Act,
whether heretofore levied or assessed or hereafter levied or assessed pursuant to the requirements
of Section 9(a). 

"Outstanding" - When used with respect to Parity Obligations, means, as of the date of
determination, all Parity Obligations theretofore delivered under this Resolution and any resolution
authorizing Additional Parity Obligations, except:

(1)  Parity Obligations theretofore canceled and delivered to the Issuer or delivered to the
Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation;

(2)  Parity Obligations deemed paid pursuant to the provisions of Section 26 of this
Resolution or any comparable section of any resolution authorizing additional Parity
Obligations;

(3)  Parity Obligations upon transfer of or in exchange for and in lieu of which other Parity
Obligations have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to this Resolution and any
resolution authorizing Additional Parity Obligations; and

(4)  Parity Obligations under which the obligations of the Issuer have been released,
discharged or extinguished in accordance with the terms thereof.

"Parity Obligations" - bonds, notes, warrants or other obligations which the Issuer reserves
the right to issue or enter into, as the case may be, in the future under the terms and conditions
provided in Section 17 of this Resolution and which obligations are equally and ratably secured
wholly or in part by a pledge of and lien on the Gross Revenues on a parity with the lien of and
pledge of the Gross Revenues which secures the Bonds.  The Bonds and the Issuer's Consolidated
Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 (to the extent any of such bonds not refunded by the Bonds)
currently constitute all the Issuer's Parity Obligations.

"Paying Agent/Registrar" - The bank, trust company, financial institution or other entity so
named in the Pricing Certificate in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.  

"Pledged Funds" - With respect to the Bonds, (a) amounts on deposit in the Revenue Fund
and allocable to the Bonds in accordance with Section 10 hereof, (b) amounts on deposit in the Debt
Service Fund, together with any investment securities or other investments or earnings belonging
to said fund, (c) amounts on deposit in the applicable Series 2021 Reserve Fund (provided that such
fund is directed to be created for the benefit of a series of Bonds in the Pricing Certificate"), together
with any investment securities or other investments or earnings belonging to said fund and (d)
amounts on deposit in the Series 2021 Construction Fund, together with any investment securities
or other investments or earnings belonging to said fund.

25

71



"Pricing Certificate" - The Certificate authorized by Section 3 to be prepared by a Pricing
Officer for the purpose of supplementing this Resolution and providing for terms of the Bonds and
the terms of sale of the Bonds.

"Pricing Officer" - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(a) hereof.

"Purchase Agreement" - A bond purchase agreement, notice of sale and bidding instructions
or private placement agreement providing for the sale of the Bonds of a series to the Purchaser
thereof.

"Purchaser" - That entity or, collectively, those entities, named in the Pricing Certificate as
the purchaser or purchasers of the Bonds of a series.

"Record Date" - The date for determining the Registered Owner for purposes of making a
payment on the Bonds of a series, as such term is specified in the Pricing Certificate.

"Registered Owners" - The registered owners of the Bonds from time to time as shown in
the books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar as bond registrar and transfer agent.

"Reserve Fund Obligation" – To the extent permitted by law, a surety bond or insurance
policy (which, under applicable law, shall not entitle the provider thereof to any right of
reimbursement or repayment other than a right to subrogation upon payments being made to
bondholders), issued by a company or institution having a rating in one of the two highest rating
categories by two Rating Agencies, deposited in the Series 2021 Reserve Fund to satisfy the Series
2021 Required Reserve Amount, whereby the issuer of such surety bond or insurance policy is
obligated to provide funds up to and including the maximum amount and under the conditions
specified in such agreement or instrument.

"State" - The State of Texas.

"Stated Maturity " - The annual principal payments of the Parity Obligations payable on the
respective dates set forth in the resolutions which authorize the issuance of such Parity Obligations. 

"Series 2021 Required Reserve" - An amount, if any, to be deposited upon the issuance of
the Bonds into a Series 2021 Reserve Fund or accumulated therein over time for the benefit of a
series of Bonds, as specified in the Pricing Certificate, and such amount may be recalculated from
time to time as provided in the Pricing Certificate.  

"Series 2021 Reserve Fund" - A fund that may be ordered created in a Pricing Certificate in
accordance with Section 10(c) hereof and, if more than one subaccount or fund shall be created
distinctive wording shall be added to identify the series of Bonds that such subaccount or fund
pertains to.

26

72



"Subordinate Lien Obligations" - Any bonds, notes, warrants, leases, guarantees or other
obligations issued by the Issuer that are payable, in whole or in part, from and secured by a lien on
and pledge of the Gross Revenues, such pledge being subordinate and inferior to the lien on and
pledge of the Gross Revenues that are or will be pledged to the payment of any Parity Obligations. 

"Term Bonds" - Those Parity Obligations so designated in the resolutions authorizing such
obligations which shall be subject to retirement by operation of a mandatory redemption account.

"Term of Issue" - With respect to any Balloon Parity Debt, a period of time equal to the
greater of (i) the period of time commencing on the date of issuance of such Balloon Parity Debt and
ending on the final maturity date of such Balloon Parity Debt or (ii) twenty-five years.

"Tuition Pledge" - Means an amount equal to 25 percent of the tuition charges collected from
each enrolled student for each semester or term, said amount being allocated from the tuition charges
charged students at the College, as permitted and established by law.  

Section 8.  PLEDGE; SECURITY AND PAYMENTS.  The Bonds are special obligations
of the Issuer, payable on a parity basis with all other Parity Obligations, if any, and secured by the
Gross Revenues.  The Bonds are additionally secured by the Pledged Funds.  The Gross Revenues
and the Pledged Funds are hereby pledged to the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds as the same shall become due and payable; and the Gross Revenues are further
pledged to the establishment and maintenance of the Pledged Funds, to the extent hereinafter
provided.  The Bonds are and will be secured by and payable only from the Gross Revenues and the
Pledged Funds, and are not secured by or payable from a mortgage or deed of trust on any
properties, whether real, personal, or mixed of the Issuer.  The Board agrees to pay the principal of,
premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds when due, whether by reason of maturity or
redemption.  

Section 9.  RATES AND CHARGES; COVENANTS RELATING TO GROSS
REVENUES.  (a)  Rate Covenant.  In each Fiscal Year, the Board shall establish, charge, and use
its reasonable efforts to collect Gross Revenues which, if collected, will be sufficient to produce
Gross Revenues for each Fiscal Year (1) in an amount at least equal to 150% of the Annual Debt
Service Requirements during such Fiscal Year of the then Outstanding Parity Obligations and to
fund and/or maintain all funds and accounts created for the benefit of each series of Parity
Obligations and (2) are sufficient to meet all financial obligations of the Issuer relating to operating
and maintaining the Issuer's property, buildings, structures, activities, operations, or facilities of any
nature or kind, that are authorized by the Act and are reasonably anticipated to be paid from Gross
Revenues.

(b)  Tuition.  The Board covenants and agrees to establish, maintain, enforce, charge and
collect tuition from all students enrolled at all of the Issuer's facilities (excepting, with respect to
each series or issue of Parity Obligations, any student in a category which, at the time of adoption
of the resolution authorizing the issuance of such Parity Obligations, is exempt by law or by the
Board from paying such tuition charges) in such amounts as shall be necessary, together with other

27

73



legally available funds, including other Gross Revenues, to satisfy the covenant set forth in Section
9(a) above; provided, however, the Issuer may increase or decrease the tuition charged to such
students, and increase or decrease the rentals, rates, charges, fees, tuition or other resources of the
Board which constitute Gross Revenues; and provided, further, that no such adjustment shall occur
if the result thereof is that the Issuer shall violate its covenant set forth in Section 9(a) above.  

(c)  Anticipated Deficit.  If the Board determines, for any reason whatsoever, that there are
not anticipated to be legally available funds, including Gross Revenues, sufficient to meet all
financial obligations of the Board described in Section 9(a) above, including the deposits and
payments due on or with respect to Outstanding Parity Obligations as the same mature or come due,
then the Board shall fix, levy, charge, and collect such rentals, rates, charges, fees, tuition or other
charges of the Issuer, effective at the next succeeding regular semester or semesters or summer term
or terms, in such amounts, without any limitation whatsoever (other than as provided in (d) below),
as will be at least sufficient to provide, together with other legally available funds, including Gross
Revenues, the money for making when due all such financial obligations of the Board, including all
payments and deposits due on or with respect to Outstanding Parity Obligations when and as
required by this Resolution or any resolution pursuant to which additional Parity Obligations are
authorized to be issued.

(d)  Economic Effect of Adjustments.  Any adjustments in the rate or manner of charging for
any rentals, rates, fees, charges, tuition or other resources included in Gross Revenues will be based
upon a certificate and recommendation of the Designated Financial Officer, delivered to the Board,
as to the rates and anticipated collection of the Gross Revenues by the Issuer (after taking into
account the anticipated effect the proposed adjustments in such rentals, rates, fees, tuition, or other
charges would have on enrollment and the receipt of Gross Revenues and other funds by the Issuer)
which will be anticipated to result in Gross Revenues being sufficient, together with other legally
available funds, to meet all financial obligations of the Board described in Section 9(a) above,
including all deposits and payments due on or in connection with Outstanding Parity Obligations
when and as required by this Resolution or any resolution pursuant to which additional Parity
Obligations are authorized to be issued.

Section 10.  CREATION AND CONFIRMATION OF FUNDS; FLOW OF FUNDS.  (a) 
There has previously been created and there is hereby confirmed to be held at a Depository of the
Issuer, for the prorata benefit of all Parity Obligations, the "Odessa Junior College District Revenue
Fund" (herein called the "Revenue Fund") and the "Odessa Junior College District Debt Service
Fund" (herein called the "Debt Service Fund".  The Issuer may establish a project construction fund
in connection with the issuance of any series of Parity Obligations issued for the purpose of
providing funds for the facilities and purposes of the Issuer.  Each project construction fund may be
designated by the Issuer as a Pledged Fund for the benefit of the series of Parity Obligations in
connection with which such fund was created.

(b)  For ease of administration, the Issuer may establish in the Revenue Fund or the Debt
Service Fund, or in the accounting records of the Issuer, subaccounts for each series of Parity
Obligations, and, if such subaccounts are established, the Issuer shall deposit to such subaccounts

28

74



a prorata amount of the Gross Revenues.  The Issuer shall deposit to the Debt Service Fund, or to
the appropriate subaccount therein, accrued interest, if any, received from the sale of each series of
Parity Obligations.  Notwithstanding the establishment of such subaccounts, the Gross Revenues on
deposit in the Revenue Fund and the Debt Service Fund shall secure all Parity Obligations equally
and ratably.

(c) If provided for in the Pricing Certificate for the benefit of the Bonds of a series, there shall
be created and ordered held at a Depository of the Issuer a fund designated the "Odessa Junior
College District Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 Reserve Fund" (the "Series 2021 Reserve Fund").  The
Issuer may create subaccounts therein or may create separate debt service reserve funds if more than
one series of Bonds are issued under this Resolution, and the Issuer may fund a debt service reserve
fund for one series (but not all series) issued hereunder.  If such subaccounts or separate funds are
created, distinctive names shall be given to each account or fund to designated the series of Bonds
that the subaccount or fund benefits and secures.  The Issuer shall deposit a prorata amount of the
Gross Revenues to such Fund, from time to time if required by the terms hereof.  The amounts on
deposit in the Series 2021 Reserve Fund shall secure all Bonds of the designated series and only the
Bonds of such series.  

(d) There is hereby ordered to be created and held at a Depository of the Issuer a project
construction fund designated the "Odessa Junior College District Revenue Bonds, Series 2021
Construction Fund" (the "Series 2021 Construction Fund"). Proceeds of the Bonds in an amount
specified in the Pricing Certificate shall be deposited into the Series 2021 Construction Fund and
used to pay costs of the Project costs of issuing the Bonds (if not otherwise provided for in the Pricing
Certificate).  The Series 2021 Construction Fund is hereby designated by the Issuer as a Pledged Fund
for the benefit of the Bonds.

(e)  The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that Gross Revenues shall be deposited upon
receipt to the credit of the Revenue Fund, and that the Gross Revenues on deposit in the Revenue
Fund shall be applied to the extent required for the following uses in the order of priority shown:

FIRST: On a pro rata allocation determined on the basis of the Annual Debt
Service Requirements for all Parity Obligations coming due in each Fiscal Year, to
the Debt Service Fund in approximately equal monthly deposits for the payment of
Parity Obligations as principal, premium, if any, and interest on Parity Obligations
comes due, with such deposits to be made in accordance with the provisions of each
resolution of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of Parity Obligations;

SECOND: On a pro rata allocation determined on the basis of the Annual Debt
Service Requirements for all Parity Obligations coming due in each Fiscal Year, to
fund each debt service reserve fund, created by resolutions authorizing the issuance
of Parity Obligations, in approximately equal monthly deposits, which contains less
than the amount to be accumulated and/or maintained therein, as provided in the
resolutions of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of such Parity Obligations;

29

75



THIRD: To the funds and accounts established by resolutions of the Issuer
providing for the payment and security of Subordinate Lien Obligations hereinafter
issued, with such deposits to be made in approximately equal monthly deposits, in
accordance with the provisions of each resolution of the Issuer authorizing the
issuance of Subordinate Lien Obligations; and

FOURTH: To the payment of all necessary and reasonable maintenance and
operating expenses of the Issuer and for such other uses as may be permitted by law.

Section 11.  DEBT SERVICE FUND.  (a)  The Issuer hereby covenants that the Debt Service
Fund shall be established and kept at such Depository of the Issuer as the Issuer shall designate, and
funds deposited therein shall be used only for the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on
the Parity Obligations.

(b)  From the Gross Revenues pledged to the payment and security of the Bonds, there shall
be paid into the Debt Service Fund such amounts, at the times provided in clauses (i) and (ii) below,
as will be fully sufficient (taking into account all amounts from every source which are deposited into
the Debt Service Fund) to (i) promptly pay, when due, all principal of, premium, if any, and interest
on the Bonds. 

(i) such amounts, deposited in approximately equal monthly installments, commencing
during the month in which the Bonds are delivered, or the month thereafter if delivery is made
after the 15th day thereof, as will be sufficient, together with other amounts, if any, in the
Debt Service Fund available for such purpose, to pay the interest scheduled to come due on
the Bonds on the next succeeding interest payment date; and

(ii) such amounts, deposited in approximately equal monthly installments, commencing
during the month that shall be the later to occur of, (i) the twelfth month before the first
maturity date of the Bonds, or (ii) the month in which the Bonds are delivered, or the month
thereafter if delivery is made after the 15th day thereof, as will be sufficient, together with
other amounts, if any, in the Debt Service Fund available for such purpose, to pay the
principal scheduled to mature on the Bonds on the next succeeding principal payment date.

In addition, all sums received from the purchasers of the Bonds constituting accrued interest, if any,
shall be placed in the Debt Service Fund.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 10(b) and 11(b)(i) and (ii), if at any time
the Parity Obligations of the Issuer are payable solely on a semi-annual basis on the same dates for
all Parity Obligations, deposits to the Debt Service Fund may be made on a semiannual basis on or
before the fifteenth day preceding each scheduled semi-annual payment date beginning immediately
following the date of delivery of any such Parity Obligations, which shall be sufficient, together with
any other money then available in the Debt Service Fund for such purpose, to pay the principal of and
interest on the Parity Obligations scheduled to come due on the next succeeding interest and principal
payment date. To the extent there is money available in the Debt Service Fund to pay principal and

30

76



interest on Bonds in whole or in part on any scheduled payment date therefor, such deposits may be
reduced by the amount of the aforesaid money available to pay said principal and interest on the
Bonds.

Section 12.  DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS; SERIES 2021 RESERVE FUND.  (a)  The
Issuer may create and establish a debt service reserve fund pursuant to the provisions of any
resolution authorizing the issuance of Parity Obligations for the purpose of securing that particular
issue or series of Parity Obligations or any specific group of issues or series of Parity Obligations and
the amounts once deposited or credited to said debt service reserve funds shall no longer constitute
Gross Revenues and shall be held solely for the benefit of the owners of the particular Parity
Obligations for which such debt service reserve fund was established.  Each such debt service reserve
fund shall be designated in such manner as is necessary to identify the Parity Obligations it secures
and to distinguish such debt service reserve fund from the debt service reserve funds created for the
benefit of other Parity Obligations. 

(b)  Amounts on deposit in the Series 2021 Reserve Fund if created pursuant to Sections
10(c), 3(b) or 3(c) hereof may be applied only for purposes of (i) paying the principal of, premium,
if any, and interest on the Bonds of the designated series when and if amounts on deposit in the Debt
Service Fund and available to pay such amounts as the same shall become due are insufficient and
(ii), in addition, may be used to the extent not required to maintain the Series 2021 Required Reserve,
to pay, or provide for the payment of, the final principal amount of such Bonds so that they are no
longer deemed to be "Outstanding" as such term is defined herein.  The Issuer shall deposit or
accumulate (in accordance with the Pricing Certificate) and maintain an amount equal to the Series
2021 Required Reserve at all times in or held for the benefit of the applicable Series 2021 Reserve
Fund.  The Series 2021 Required Reserve shall be maintained with Gross Revenues in accordance
with Section 10 hereof. Subject to subsection (e) of this Section, the Issuer may at any time substitute
a qualifying Credit Facility or Reserve Fund Obligation for all or part of the cash or other Credit
Facility or Reserve Fund Obligation on deposit in, or held for the benefit of, the Series 2021 Reserve
Fund. 

(c)  During such time as the applicable Series 2021 Reserve Fund contains the Series 2021
Required Reserve, the Issuer may, at its option, withdraw any amount in the Series 2021 Reserve
Fund in excess of the Series 2021 Required Reserve and, to the extent it represents proceeds from the
sale of the Bonds, deposit such surplus in the Debt Service Fund, and, to the extent any such excess
is from a source other than proceeds of the Bonds, in the Debt Service Fund or the Revenue Fund. 
When and so long as the cash and investments in the Series 2021 Reserve Fund and/or coverage
afforded by a Credit Facility or Reserve Fund Obligation held for the account of the Series 2021
Reserve Fund total not less than the Series 2021 Required Reserve, no deposits need be made to the
credit of the Series 2021 Reserve Fund; but, if and when the Series 2021 Reserve Fund at any time
contains money, securities, a Credit Facility or a Reserve Fund Obligation having a value that is less
than the Series 2021 Required Reserve, the Issuer covenants and agrees to cause deposits to be made
to the Series 2021 Reserve Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Pricing Certificate until the
total Series 2021 Required Reserve then required to be maintained in the applicable Series 2021
Reserve Fund has been fully restored.  

31

77



(d)  The Issuer further covenants and agrees that, subject only to the provisions of Section 10
hereof, the Gross Revenues shall be applied and appropriated and used to maintain the Series 2021
Required Reserve and to cure any deficiency in such amounts as required by the terms of this
Resolution. 

(e)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, if State law allows the Issuer to
enter into a Credit Agreement or Credit Facility in connection with the Bonds after the issuance date
of the Bonds, the Board must specifically approve any such Credit Agreement or Credit Facility and
any such Credit Agreement or Credit Facility must be submitted to the Attorney General of Texas
(if submission is then required by law) for approval.

Section 13.  DEFICIENCIES.  In the event there are insufficient funds available in any month
to permit the required monthly deposits in any fund created in accordance with the provisions of
Section 10 hereof for purposes of paying the debt service requirements or funding or restoring any
debt service reserve fund on any Parity Obligations, amounts equivalent to such deficiencies shall
be set apart and paid into the said fund from the first available and unallocated Gross Revenues
pledged to the payment of the Parity Obligations in the next following month or months, and such
payments shall be in addition to the monthly amounts otherwise required to be paid into said funds
during such month or months.

Section 14.  INVESTMENT EARNINGS.  Income and profits received from investments of
the funds on deposit in any fund created in accordance with Section 10 hereof shall be retained
therein and the Issuer shall take into account the amount of such investment earnings which are on
deposit in any  such fund in determining the periodic amounts required to be deposited thereto from
the Revenue Fund; provided that any amount on deposit in a debt service reserve fund created for any 
Parity Obligations which is in excess of the amounts required therein may be removed and used for
any lawful purpose of the Issuer, subject to the provisions of Section 25 hereof.

Section 15.  TRANSFER OF FUNDS TO THE PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR.  On or
before an interest or principal payment date of the Bonds, the Issuer shall cause a transfer of funds
on deposit in the Debt Service Fund to be made to the Paying Agent/Registrar in the amounts
calculated as fully sufficient to pay and discharge promptly, as due, each installment of principal of,
premium, if any, and interest pertaining to the Bonds.  In the event Bonds may be called for
redemption prior to maturity, and are called for redemption by the Issuer, the Board shall cause
amounts calculated as sufficient to pay and discharge such Bonds (including accrued interest and
premium, if any) so called for redemption to be transferred to the Paying Agent/Registrar on or before
the date fixed for the redemption of such Bonds.

Section 16.  SECURITY OF FUNDS.  All money on deposit in the special funds for which
this Resolution makes provision (except any portions thereof as may be at any time properly invested)
shall be secured in the manner and to the fullest extent required by the laws of the State for the
security of public funds.

32

78



Section 17.  ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL PARITY OBLIGATIONS.  (a) Subject to the
provisions hereinafter appearing as conditions precedent which must be satisfied, the Issuer reserves
the right to issue, from time to time as needed, additional Parity Obligations for any lawful purpose. 
Such Parity Obligations may be issued in such form and manner as now or hereafter authorized by
the laws of the State for the issuance of evidences of indebtedness or other instruments, and should
new methods or financing techniques be developed that differ from those now available and in
normal use, the Issuer reserves the right to employ the same in its financing arrangements provided
only that the following conditions precedent for the authorization and issuance of the same are
satisfied, to wit:

(1) The Designated Financial Officer shall have executed a certificate stating (a) that, to
the best of his or her knowledge and belief, the Issuer is not then in default as to any
covenants, obligation or agreement contained in any resolution or other proceeding relating
to any obligations of the Issuer payable in whole or in part from, and secured by a lien on and
pledge of, the Gross Revenues that would materially affect the security or payment of the
Parity Obligations and (b) either (i) payments into all special funds or accounts created and
established for the payment and security of all Outstanding Parity Obligations have been
made and that the amounts on deposit in such special funds or accounts are the amounts then
required to be on deposit therein or (ii) the application of the proceeds of sale of such Parity
Obligations then being issued will cure any such deficiency.

(2) The Designated Financial Officer shall have executed a certificate to the effect that,
according to the books and records of the Issuer, the Gross Revenues, for the preceding Fiscal
Year or for a 12 consecutive month period out of the 18 consecutive months immediately
preceding the month the resolution authorizing the issuance of the Parity Obligations is
adopted are equal to at least (i) 1.5 times the maximum Annual Debt Service Requirements
for all Parity Obligations then Outstanding and the proposed Parity Obligations, and in
making the determination of the Gross Revenues, the Designated Financial Officer may take
into consideration a change in the rates and charges for services and facilities afforded by the
Issuer that became effective at least sixty (60) days prior to the last day of the period for
which the Gross Revenues are determined and, for purposes of satisfying the above Gross
Revenues test, make a pro forma determination of the Gross Revenues of the Issuer for the
period of time covered by this certification or opinion based on such change in rates and
charges being in effect for the entire period covered by the certificate of the Designated
Financial Officer.

(b)  Subject to the provisions of Section 17(a) hereof, Parity Obligations may be issued from
time to time (pursuant to any law then available) for the purpose of refunding Outstanding Parity
Obligations or Subordinate Lien Obligations upon such terms and conditions as the governing body
of the Issuer may deem to be in the best interest of the Issuer and, if less than all Outstanding Parity
Obligations are refunded or if any Subordinate Lien Obligations are refunded, the proposed refunding
Parity Obligations shall be considered as additional Parity Obligations under the provisions of this
Section 17, but the certificates required in Section 17(a) shall give effect to the issuance of the

33

79



proposed refunding Parity Obligations (and shall not give effect to any Parity Obligations being
refunded following their cancellation or provision being made for their payment).

(c)  Payments to be made under a Credit Agreement may be treated as Parity Obligations if
the Board makes a finding in the resolution authorizing the treatment of the obligations of the Issuer
incurred under a Credit Agreement as a Parity Obligation that, based upon the findings contained in
a certificate executed and delivered by a Designated Financial Officer, the Issuer will have sufficient
funds to meet the financial obligations of the Issuer, including sufficient Gross Revenues to satisfy
the rate covenant set forth in Section 9(a) of this Resolution, after giving effect to the treatment of
the Credit Agreement as a Parity Obligation.

Section 18.  NO OBLIGATION OF LIEN SUPERIOR TO THAT OF THE PARITY
OBLIGATIONS; NON-RECOURSE DEBT AND SUBORDINATE LIEN OBLIGATIONS.  The
Issuer will not hereafter issue any additional bonds, notes, or other obligations or create or issue
evidences of indebtedness for any purpose possessing a lien on the Gross Revenues superior to that
to be possessed by the Parity Obligations.  The Issuer, however, retains the right to create and issue
or incur Parity Obligations in accordance with Section 17 hereof.  Non-Recourse Debt and
Subordinate Lien Obligations may be incurred by the Board without limitation.

Section 19.  METHOD OF AMENDMENT.  The Issuer hereby reserves the right to amend
this Resolution subject to the following terms and conditions, to-wit:

(a)   The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of any Registered Owner, except
as otherwise required by paragraph (b) below, amend or supplement this Resolution in order to (i)
cure any ambiguity, defect or omission in this Resolution that does not materially adversely affect
the interests of the Registered Owners, (ii) grant additional rights or security for the benefit of the
Registered Owners, (iii) add events of default as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of this
Resolution and which shall not materially adversely affect the interests of the Registered Owners, (iv)
qualify this Resolution under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or corresponding
provisions of federal laws from time to time in effect, or (v) make such other provisions in regard to
matters or questions arising under this Resolution as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of
this Resolution and which shall not in the opinion of Bond Counsel materially adversely affect the
interests of the Registered Owners.

(b)  Except as provided in paragraph (a) above, the Registered Owners of Bonds aggregating
in principal amount 51% of the aggregate principal amount of then Outstanding Bonds which are the
subject of a proposed amendment shall have the right from time to time to approve any amendment
hereto which may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer; provided, however, that without
the consent of 100% of the Registered Owners in aggregate principal amount of the then Outstanding
Bonds, nothing herein contained shall permit or be construed to permit amendment of the terms and
conditions of this Resolution or in any of the Bonds so as to:

  (1)  Make any change in the maturity of any of the Outstanding Bonds;

34

80



  (2)  Reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the Outstanding Bonds;

  (3)  Reduce the amount of the principal of, or redemption premium, if any, payable on any
Outstanding Bonds;

  (4)  Modify the terms of payment of principal or of interest or redemption premium on
Outstanding Bonds or any of them or impose any condition with respect to such payment; or

  (5)  Change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of the Bonds necessary for
consent to such amendment.

(c)  If at any time the Issuer shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the
Issuer shall send by U.S. mail to each registered owner of the affected Bonds a copy of the proposed
amendment and cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published at least once in a financial
publication published in The City of New York, New York or in the State.  Such published notice
shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that a copy thereof is on
file at the office of the Issuer for inspection by all Registered Owners of such Bonds.

(d)  Whenever at any time within one year from the date of publication of such notice the
Issuer shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by the Registered Owners of at least 51%
in aggregate principal amount of all of the Bonds then Outstanding which are required for the
amendment, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment and which shall
specifically consent to and approve such amendment, the Issuer may adopt the amendment  in
substantially the same form.

(e)  Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this
Section, this Resolution shall be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance with such
amendatory resolution, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations of the Issuer and all
Registered Owners of such affected Bonds shall thereafter be determined, exercised, and enforced,
subject in all respects to such amendment.

(f)  Any consent given by the Registered Owner of a Bond pursuant to the provisions of this
Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the publication of the notice
provided for in this Section, and shall be conclusive and binding upon all future Registered Owners
of the same bond during such period.  Such consent may be revoked at any time after six months from
the date of the publication of said notice by the Registered Owner who gave such consent, or by a
successor in title, by filing notice with the Issuer, but such revocation shall not be effective if the
Registered Owners of 51% in aggregate principal amount of the affected Bonds then Outstanding,
have, prior to the attempted revocation, consented to and approved the amendment.

For the purposes of establishing ownership of the Bonds, the Issuer shall rely solely upon the
registration of the ownership of such bonds on the registration books kept by the Paying
Agent/Registrar.

35

81



Section 20.  GENERAL COVENANTS.  The Board further represents, covenants, and agrees
that while any Parity Obligations or interest thereon is Outstanding:

(a)  Payment of Parity Obligations.  On or before each payment date the Issuer shall make
available to the Paying Agent for such Parity Obligations or to such other party as required by a
resolution authorizing the issuance of Parity Obligations, money sufficient to pay the interest on,
principal of, and premium, if any, on the Parity Obligations as will accrue or otherwise come due or
mature, or be subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity, on such date and the fees and
expenses related to the Parity Obligations, including the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent and
any Registrar, trustee, remarketing agent, tender agent, or Credit Provider.  

(b)  Performance.  It will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings,
stipulations, and provisions contained in this Resolution and in each resolution authorizing the
issuance of Parity Obligations, and in each and every Parity Obligation or evidence thereof.

(c)  Redemption.  It will duly cause to be called for redemption prior to maturity, and will
cause to be redeemed prior to maturity, all Parity Obligations which by their terms are mandatorily
required to be redeemed prior to maturity, when and as so required. 

(d)  Lawful Title.  The Issuer lawfully owns, has title to, or is lawfully possessed of the lands,
buildings, and facilities now constituting the Issuer, and the Board will defend said title and title to
any lands, buildings, and facilities which may hereafter become part of the College or otherwise the
property of the Issuer, for the benefit of the owners of Parity Obligations against the claims and
demands of all persons whomsoever.

(e)  Lawful Authority.  It is lawfully qualified to operate the College and all services afforded
by the Issuer, and further to pledge the Gross Revenues and Pledged Funds herein pledged in the
manner prescribed herein and has lawfully exercised such right.  It will operate and continuously
maintain the College and all services afforded by the Issuer while any Parity Obligations are
Outstanding and unpaid.

(f)  Preservation of Lien.  It will not do or suffer any act or thing whereby the pledge of the
Gross Revenues and Pledged Funds might or could be impaired, and that it will at all times maintain,
preserve, and keep the real and tangible property of the Issuer and every part thereof in good
condition, repair, and working order and operate, maintain, preserve, and keep the facilities,
buildings, structures, and equipment pertaining thereto in good condition, repair, and working order. 
The Board hereby covenants and agrees to levy and collect within the Issuer an ad valorem
maintenance tax, within the limits heretofore voted, or within such higher limits as may be hereafter
established by a vote of the qualified voters of the Issuer in accordance with applicable law (with full
allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of collection), at such rate or rates as will permit
the maintenance and operation of the College and all services provided by the Issuer to the level and
standards required by this Section.

36

82



(g)  No Additional Encumbrance.  It shall not incur additional Debt secured by the Gross
Revenues in any manner, except as permitted by this Resolution in connection with Parity
Obligations, unless said Debt is made junior and subordinate in all respects to the liens, pledges,
covenants, and agreements of this Resolution and any resolution authorizing the issuance of Parity
Obligations.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, Gross Revenues not needed
to pay the debt service on Parity Obligations and to maintain the funds and accounts established
herein and to be established in each resolution authorizing the issuance of Parity Obligations, and to
pay debt service on Debt that is junior and subordinate thereto may be used by the Issuer for any
lawful purpose.

(h) Investments and Security.  It will invest and secure money in all accounts and funds
established pursuant to this Resolution and any on Parity Obligations in the manner prescribed by law
for such funds, including, but not by way of limitation, the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter
2256, Texas Government Code, as amended, and in accordance with written policies adopted by the
Board.

(i)  Records.  It will keep proper books of record and account in which full, true, and correct
entries will be made of all dealings, activities, and transactions relating to the Issuer.  Each year while
Parity Obligations are Outstanding, the Board will cause to be prepared from such books of record
and account an annual financial report of the Issuer. 

(j)  Inspection of Books.  It will permit any owner or owners of twenty-five percent (25%) or
more of the then Outstanding principal amount of any series of Parity Obligations at all reasonable
times to inspect all records, accounts, and data of the Board relating to the Gross Revenues.  

(k)  Determination of Outstanding Parity Obligations.  For all purposes of this Resolution, the
judgment of the Chief Financial Officer of the College shall be deemed final in the determination of
which obligations of the Board constitute Parity Obligations. 

(l)  Sale or Encumbrance of Property.  Except as provided in this Section 20(l) and in Sections
25 and 26 hereof, the Issuer will not sell or encumber its facilities or any substantial part thereof,
provided that the Board may convey, sell, or otherwise dispose of any properties of the College,
including properties that generate Gross Revenues, as follows:

(a)  Such conveyance, sale, or disposition shall be in the ordinary course of business of the
Issuer. 

(b)  The Board shall determine that after the conveyance, sale, or other disposition of such
properties, the Board shall have sufficient funds during each Fiscal Year during which Parity
Obligations are to be outstanding to meet the financial obligations of the Issuer, including
sufficient Gross Revenues to satisfy the Annual Debt Service Requirements of the Issuer and
to meet all financial obligations of the Board relating to the Parity Obligations, including,
without limitation, the payment of Parity Obligations.

37

83



(c)  Any conveyance, sale, or other disposition of property financed with the proceeds of
Parity Obligations shall conform to the federal income tax covenants set forth in the
resolution pursuant to which the Parity Obligations were issued.

Section 21.  REMEDIES IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT.  (a) In addition to all of the rights
and remedies provided by the laws of the State, it is specifically covenanted and agreed particularly
that in the event the Issuer (i) defaults in the payments to be made to the Debt Service Fund or the
Series 2021 Reserve Fund as required by this Resolution (and the Pricing Certificate, with respect
to the Series 2021 Reserve Fund) or (ii) default in the performance or observance of any other
covenant, agreement or obligation of the Issuer under this Resolution, the failure to perform which
materially, adversely affects the rights of the Registered Owners, including, but not limited to, their
prospect or ability to be repaid in accordance with this Resolution, and the continuation thereof for
a period of 30 days after notice of such default is given by any Registered Owner to the Issuer (the
occurrence of any such events is hereinafter referred to as an "Event of Default"):

(b)  The Registered Owner or Registered Owners of any Parity Obligations shall be entitled
to a writ of mandamus issued by a court of proper jurisdiction, compelling and requiring the Issuer,
its officers, the Board, and/or all of them, to observe and perform any covenants, conditions, or
obligations prescribed in this Resolution.

(c)  No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall
impair any such right or power, or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or
acquiescence therein, and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as
often as may be deemed expedient.

(d)  The specific remedies herein provided shall be cumulative of all other existing remedies
and the specifications of such remedies shall not be deemed to be exclusive.

Section 22.  BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS.  The Bonds authorized by this
Resolution are special obligations of the Issuer payable from the Gross Revenues and amounts on
deposit in the Pledged Funds, and the Registered Owners thereof shall never have the right to demand
payment out of funds raised or to be raised by taxation.

Section 23.  DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED BONDS.  (a) 
In the event any Outstanding Bond is damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall cause to be printed, executed, and delivered, a new bond of the same principal
amount, maturity, and interest rate, as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond, in
replacement for such Bond in the manner hereinafter provided.

(b)  Application for replacement of damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bonds shall
be made by the registered owner thereof to the Paying Agent/Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft,
or destruction of a Bond, the Registered Owner applying for a replacement bond shall furnish to the
Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar such security or indemnity as may be required by them to
save each of them harmless from any loss or damage with respect thereto.  Also, in every case of loss,

38

84



theft, or destruction of a Bond, the Registered Owner shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying
Agent/Registrar evidence to their satisfaction of the loss, theft, or destruction of such Bond, as the
case may be.  In every case of damage or mutilation of a Bond, the registered owner shall surrender
to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation the Bond so damaged or mutilated.

(c)  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any such Bond shall
have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in the payment of the principal
of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bond, the Issuer may authorize the payment of the
same (without surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged or mutilated Bond) instead of
issuing a replacement Bond, provided security or indemnity is furnished as above provided in this
Section.

(d)  Prior to the issuance of any replacement bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge
the registered owner of such Bond with all legal, printing, and other expenses in connection
therewith.  Every replacement bond issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the
fact that any Bond is lost, stolen, or destroyed shall constitute a contractual obligation of the Issuer
whether or not the lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by
anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and proportionately with
any and all other Bonds duly issued under this Resolution.

(e)  In accordance with Chapter 1206, Texas Government Code, this Section of this
Resolution shall constitute authority for the issuance of any such replacement bond without necessity
of further action by the governing body of the Issuer or any other body or person, and the duty of the
replacement of such bonds is hereby authorized and imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar, and
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver such Bonds in the form and manner and
with the effect, as provided in Section 4(a) of this Resolution for Bonds issued in exchange for other
Bonds.

Section 24.  CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF BONDS; BOND
COUNSEL'S OPINION, BOND INSURANCE, AND CUSIP NUMBERS.  The Chair of the Board
is hereby authorized to have control of the Bonds initially issued and delivered hereunder and all
necessary records and proceedings pertaining to the Bonds pending their delivery and their
investigation, examination, and approval by the Attorney General of the State, and their registration
by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State.  Upon registration of the Bonds said Comptroller
of Public Accounts (or a deputy designated in writing to act for said Comptroller) shall manually sign
the Comptroller's Registration Certificate attached to such Bonds, and the seal of said Comptroller
shall be impressed, or placed in facsimile, on such Certificate.  The approving legal opinion of the
Issuer's Bond Counsel, a statement regarding the issuance of a municipal bond insurance policy to
secure payment of debt service on the Bonds, if any, and the assigned CUSIP numbers may, at the
option of the Issuer, be printed on the Bonds issued and delivered under this Resolution, but neither
shall have any legal effect, and shall be solely for the convenience and information of the registered
owners of the Bonds.

39

85



Section 25.  COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION OF INTEREST ON THE
BONDS.  Subject to the determination of the Pricing Officer, as set forth in the Pricing Certificate
as to the treatment of the Bonds pursuant to the Code as obligations with respect to which the interest
is either subject to federal income taxation or exempt from federal income taxation, the Issuer makes
the following covenants with respect to the Bonds (which covenants shall apply only to Bonds that
are issued as obligations the interest on which is exempt from federal income taxation).

(a)  Covenants.  The Issuer covenants to take any action necessary to assure, or refrain from
any action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Bonds as obligations described in
section 103 of the Code, the interest on which is not includable in the "gross income" of the holder
for purposes of federal income taxation.  In furtherance thereof, the Issuer covenants as follows:

(1)  to take any action to assure that no more than 10 percent of the proceeds of the
Bonds or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited to a reserve fund, if any)
are used for any "private business use," as defined in section 141(b)(6) of the Code or, if more
than 10 percent of the proceeds or the projects financed therewith are so used, such amounts,
whether or not received by the Issuer, with respect to such private business use, do not, under
the terms of this Resolution or any underlying arrangement, directly or indirectly, secure or
provide for the payment of more than 10 percent of the debt service on the Bonds, in
contravention of section 141(b)(2) of the Code;

(2)  to take any action to assure that in the event that the "private business use"
described in subsection (1) hereof exceeds 5 percent of the proceeds of the Bonds or the
projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund, if any) then the
amount in excess of 5 percent is used for a "private business use" which is "related" and not
"disproportionate," within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of the Code, to the governmental
use;

(3)  to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of
$5,000,000, or 5 percent of the proceeds of the Bonds (less amounts deposited into a reserve
fund, if any) is directly or indirectly used to finance loans to persons, other than state or local
governmental units, in contravention of section 141(c) of the Code;

(4)  to refrain from taking any action which would otherwise result in the Bonds being
treated as "private activity bonds" within the meaning of section 141(b) of the Code;

(5)  to refrain from taking any action that would result in the Bonds being "federally
guaranteed" within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code;

(6)  to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Bonds, directly or
indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to acquire
investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which produces a materially
higher yield over the term of the Bonds, other than investment property acquired with --

40

86



(A)  proceeds of the Bonds invested for a reasonable temporary period of 3
years or less or, in the case of a refunding bond, for a period of 30 days or less until
such proceeds are needed for the purpose for which the bonds are issued,

(B)  amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the meaning of
section l.148-1(b) of the Treasury Regulations, and

(C)  amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement fund
to the extent such amounts do not exceed 10 percent of the proceeds of the Bonds;

(7)  to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Bonds or amounts treated as
proceeds of the Bonds, as may be necessary, so that the Bonds do not otherwise contravene
the requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage) and, to the extent
applicable, section 149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings); and

(8)  to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year period
(beginning on the date of delivery of the Bonds) an amount that is at least equal to 90 percent
of the "Excess Earnings," within the meaning of section 148(f) of the Code and to pay to the
United States of America, not later than 60 days after the Bonds have been paid in full, 100
percent of the amount then required to be paid as a result of Excess Earnings under section
148(f) of the Code.

(b)  Rebate Fund.  In order to facilitate compliance with the above covenant (8), a "Rebate
Fund" is hereby established by the Issuer for the sole benefit of the United States of America, and
such fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other person, including without limitation the
bondholders.  The Rebate Fund is established for the additional purpose of compliance with section
148 of the Code.

(c)  Proceeds.  The Issuer understands that the term "proceeds" includes "disposition
proceeds" as defined in the Treasury Regulations and, in the case of refunding bonds, transferred
proceeds (if any) and proceeds of the refunded bonds expended prior to the date of issuance of the
Bonds.  It is the understanding of the Issuer that the covenants contained herein are intended to assure
compliance with the Code and any regulations or rulings promulgated by the U.S. Department of the
Treasury pursuant thereto.  In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which
modify or expand provisions of the Code, as applicable to the Bonds, the Issuer will not be required
to comply with any covenant contained herein to the extent that such failure to comply, in the opinion
of nationally recognized bond counsel, will not adversely affect the exemption from federal income
taxation of interest on the Bonds under section 103 of the Code.  In the event that regulations or
rulings are hereafter promulgated which impose additional requirements which are applicable to the
Bonds, the Issuer agrees to comply with the additional requirements to the extent necessary, in the
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, to preserve the exemption from federal income
taxation of interest on the Bonds under section 103 of the Code In furtherance of such intention, the
Issuer hereby authorizes and directs the Superintendent to execute any documents, certificates or

41

87



reports required by the Code and to make such elections, on behalf of the Issuer, which may be
permitted by the Code as are consistent with the purpose for the issuance of the Bonds.

(d)  Allocation of, and Limitation on, Expenditures for the Project.  The Issuer covenants to
account for the expenditure of sale proceeds and investment earnings to be used for the Project and
the costs of issuance of the Bonds on its books and records in accordance with the requirements of
the Internal Revenue Code.  The Issuer recognizes that in order for the proceeds to be considered
used for the reimbursement of costs, the proceeds must be allocated to expenditures within 18 months
of the later of the date that (1) the expenditure is made, or (2) the Project is completed; but in no
event later than three years after the date on which the original expenditure is paid.  The foregoing
notwithstanding, the Issuer recognizes that in order for proceeds to be expended under the Internal
Revenue Code, the sale proceeds or investment earnings must be expended no more than 60 days
after the earlier of (1) the fifth anniversary of the delivery of the Bond, or (2) the date the Bond is
retired.  The Issuer agrees to obtain the advice of nationally-recognized bond counsel if such
expenditure fails to comply with the foregoing to assure that such expenditure will not adversely
affect the tax-exempt status of the Bond.  For purposes hereof, the issuer shall not be obligated to
comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely affect
the excludability for federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest.

(e)  Disposition of Project.  The Issuer covenants that the property constituting the Project will
not be sold or otherwise disposed in a transaction resulting in the receipt by the Issuer of cash or other
compensation, unless the Issuer obtains an opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel that such
sale or other disposition will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds.  For purposes
of the foregoing, the portion of the property comprising personal property and disposed in the
ordinary course shall not be treated as a transaction resulting in the receipt of cash or other
compensation.  For purposes hereof, the Issuer shall not be obligated to comply with this covenant
if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for
federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest.

(f)  Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  If the Pricing Certificate affirmatively
provides that a series of Bonds issued hereunder shall be "qualified tax-exempt obligations for
purposes of section 265(b)(3) of the Code, then, in that event, the Issuer hereby designates the Bonds
as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" as defined in section 265(b)(3) of the Code, conditioned upon
the Purchaser certifying that the aggregate initial offering price of the Bonds to the public (excluding
any accrued interest) is no greater than $10 million (or such other amount permitted by such section
265 of the Code).  Assuming such condition is met, in furtherance of such designation, the Issuer
represents, covenants and warrants the following: (a) that during the calendar year in which the
Bonds are issued, the Issuer (including any subordinate entities) has not designated nor will designate
obligations, which when aggregated with the Bonds, will result in more than $10,000,000 (or such
other amount permitted by such section 265 of the Code) of "qualified tax-exempt obligations" being
issued; (b) that the Issuer reasonably anticipates that the amount of tax-exempt obligations issued
during the calendar year in which the Bonds are issued, by the Issuer (or any subordinate entities) will
not exceed $10,000,000 (or such other amount permitted by such section 265 of the Code); and, (c)
that the Issuer will take such action or refrain from such action as necessary, and as more particularly

42

88



set forth in this Section, in order that the Bonds will not be considered "private activity bonds" within
the meaning of section 141 of the Code.

(g)  Reimbursement.  This Resolution is intended to satisfy the official intent requirements
set forth in section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations with respect to the payment of costs of the
Project.

Section 26.  DEFEASANCE OF BONDS. (a)  Defeasance.  Any Bond and the interest
thereon shall be deemed to be paid, retired, and no longer outstanding (a "Defeased Bond") within
the meaning of this Resolution, except to the extent provided in subsection (d) of this Section, when
payment of the principal of such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date (whether such due date
be by reason of maturity or otherwise) either (i) shall have been made or caused to be made in
accordance with the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided for on or before such due date by
irrevocably depositing with or making available to the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with
an escrow agreement or other instrument (the "Future Escrow Agreement") for such payment (1)
lawful money of the United States of America sufficient to make such payment or (2) Defeasance
Securities that mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will insure the
availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for such payment, and when proper
arrangements have been made by the Issuer with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of its
services until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and payable.  At such time as a Bond shall
be deemed to be a Defeased Bond hereunder, as aforesaid, such Bond and the interest thereon shall
no longer be secured by, payable from, or entitled to the benefits of, the ad valorem taxes or revenues
herein levied and pledged as provided in this Resolution, and such principal and interest shall be
payable solely from such money or Defeasance Securities, and thereafter the Issuer will have no
further responsibility with respect to amounts available to the Paying Agent/Registrar (or other
financial institution permitted by applicable law) for the payment of such Defeased Bonds, including
any insufficiency therein caused by the failure of the Paying Agent/Registrar (or other financial
institution permitted by applicable law) to receive payment when due on the Defeasance Securities. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the contrary, it is hereby provided that any
determination not to redeem Defeased Bonds that is made in conjunction with the payment
arrangements specified in subsection (a)(i) or (ii) of this Section shall not be irrevocable, provided
that: (1) in the proceedings providing for such payment arrangements, the Issuer expressly reserves
the right to call the Defeased Bonds for redemption; (2) gives notice of the reservation of that right
to the Registered Owners of the Defeased Bonds immediately following the making of the payment
arrangements; and (3) directs that notice of the reservation be included in any redemption notices that
it authorizes.

(b)  Investment and Disposition of Funds.  Any moneys so deposited with the Paying
Agent/Registrar may at the written direction of the Issuer also be invested in Defeasance Securities,
maturing in the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from such Defeasance
Securities received by the Paying Agent/Registrar that is not required for the payment of the Bonds
and interest thereon, with respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be turned over
to the Issuer, or deposited as directed in writing by the Issuer.  Any Future Escrow Agreement
pursuant to which the money and/or Defeasance Securities are held for the payment of Defeased

43

89



Bonds may contain provisions permitting the investment or reinvestment of such moneys in
Defeasance Securities or the substitution of other Defeasance Securities upon the satisfaction of the
requirements specified in subsection (a)(i) or (ii) of this Section.  All income from such Defeasance
Securities received by the Paying Agent/Registrar which is not required for the payment of the
Defeased Bonds, with respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be remitted to the
Issuer or deposited as directed in writing by the Issuer.

(c)  Paying Agent/Registrar Services.  Until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and
payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such
Defeased Bonds the same as if they had not been defeased, and the Issuer shall make proper
arrangements to provide and pay for such services as required by this Resolution.

(d)  Selection of Defeased Bonds.  In the event that the Issuer elects to defease less than all
of the principal amount of Bonds of a maturity, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select, or cause to
be selected, such amount of Bonds by such random method as it deems fair and appropriate.

Section 27. SALE OF BONDS; OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

(a)  The Bonds shall be sold and delivered subject to the provisions of Sections 1 and 3 and
pursuant to the terms and provisions of the Purchase Agreement which an Authorized Officer is
hereby authorized to execute and deliver.  The Bonds shall initially be registered in the name of the
purchaser thereof as set forth in the Pricing Certificate.

(b)  The Pricing Officer is hereby authorized, in the name and on behalf of the Issuer, to
approve, distribute, and deliver a preliminary official statement and a final official statement or other
offering document relating to the Bonds to be used by the Purchaser in the marketing of the Bonds.

Section 28.  CONTINUED PERFECTION OF SECURITY INTEREST.  Chapter 1208,
Government Code, applies to the issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of the Gross Revenues and
the Pledged Funds granted by the Issuer under Section 8 of this Resolution, and such pledge is
therefore valid, effective, and perfected.  If Texas law is amended at any time while the Bonds are
outstanding and unpaid such that the pledge of the taxes granted by the Issuer under Section 8 of this
Resolution is to be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code, then
in order to preserve to the registered owners of the Bonds the perfection of the security interest in said
pledge, the Issuer agrees to take such measures as it determines are reasonable and necessary under
Texas law to comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code and
enable a filing to perfect the security interest in said pledge to occur.

Section 29.  FURTHER PROCEDURES; ENGAGEMENT OF BOND COUNSEL.  (a) Each
Authorized Officer shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from
time to time and at any time to do and perform all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge,
and deliver in the name and under the corporate seal and on behalf of the Issuer all such instruments,
whether or not herein mentioned, as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and
provisions of this Resolution, the Bonds, the sale of the Bonds, and the offering documents for the

44

90



Bonds.  In case any officer whose signature shall appear on any Bond shall cease to be such officer
before the delivery of such Bond, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all
purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery.

(b)  The obligation of the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds is subject to the Purchaser
being furnished with the final, approving opinion of McCall, Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P., bond
counsel to the Issuer, which opinion shall be dated as of and delivered on the date of initial delivery
of the Bonds to the Purchaser.  The engagement of such firm as bond counsel to the Issuer in
connection with issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds is hereby approved and confirmed.  The
execution and delivery of an engagement letter between the Issuer and such firm, with respect to such
services as bond counsel, is hereby authorized in such form as may be approved by the Chair of the
Board or the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer, and an Authorized Officer is hereby authorized
to execute such engagement letter.

Section 30.  INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS.  All indentures, orders or resolutions, or parts
thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain
controlling as to the matters contained herein.

Section 31.  COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 15c2-12.  

(a) If the Bonds are sold by public offering, and are subject to the Rule (as defined
below), the following provisions shall apply:

(i)  Definitions.  As used in this Section, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to
such terms below:

"Financial Obligation" means a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in
connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned
debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument;
provided that "financial obligation" shall not include municipal securities as to which a final
official statement (as defined in the Rule) has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the
Rule.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

"Rule" means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time.

"SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

(ii)  Annual Reports.  (A)  The Issuer shall provide annually to the MSRB, in the electronic
format prescribed by the MSRB, financial information and operating data (the "Annual Operating
Report") with respect to the Issuer of the general type included in the final Official Statement
authorized by this Resolution, being the information described in the Pricing Certificate.  The Issuer

45

91



will additionally provide financial statements of the Issuer (the "Financial Statements"), that will be
(i) prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described in the Pricing Certificate or such
other accounting principles as the Issuer may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to
State law or regulation and shall be in substantially the form included in the final Official Statement
and (ii) audited, if the Issuer commissions an audit of such Financial Statements and the audit is
completed within the period during which they must be provided.  The Issuer will update and provide
the Annual Operating Report within six months after the end of each fiscal year and the Financial
Statements within 12 months of the end of each fiscal year, in each case beginning with the fiscal
year ending in and after 2021.  The Issuer may provide the Financial Statements earlier, including
at the time it provides its Annual Operating Report, but if the audit of such Financial Statements is
not complete within 12 months after any such fiscal year end, then the Issuer shall file unaudited
Financial Statements within such 12-month period and audited Financial Statements for the
applicable fiscal year, when and if the audit report on such Financial Statements becomes available.

(B)  If the Issuer changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date
of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Issuer otherwise would be required to
provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.  The financial information
and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be set forth in full in one or more
documents or may be included by specific reference to any documents available to the public on the
MSRB's internet website or filed with the SEC.

(iii)  Event Notices.  The Issuer shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of
ten Business Days after the occurrence of the event, of any of the following events with respect to
the Bonds:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
2. Non-payment related defaults, if material;
3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or

final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB)
or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds,
or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;

7. Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material;
8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;
9. Defeasances;
10. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material;
11. Rating changes;
12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer; 
13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer or

the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the ordinary
course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action

46

92



or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms, if material; 

14. Appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar or change in the name of the
Paying Agent/Registrar, if material;

15. Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a
Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect security holders, if material;
and

16. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which
reflect financial difficulties.

The Issuer shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the Issuer to provide financial
information or operating data in accordance with subsection (ii) of this Section by the time required
by subsection (ii).  As used in clause (iii)12 above, the phrase "bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership
or similar event"  means the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Issuer
in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law
in which a court of governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the
assets or business of the Issuer, or if jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the Board and officials
or officers of the Issuer in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or
governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or
liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially
all of the assets or business of the Issuer.

(iv)  Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments.  (A)  The Issuer shall be obligated to
observe and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as,
the Issuer remains an "obligated person" with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule,
except that the Issuer in any event will give notice of any deposit made in accordance with this
Resolution or applicable law that causes the Bonds no longer to be outstanding.  

(B)  The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the registered owners and
beneficial owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit
or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The Issuer
undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices
which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Section and does not hereby undertake to
provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the
Issuer's financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information
provided in accordance with this Section or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The
Issuer does not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness
to a decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date.

(C)  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE ISSUER BE LIABLE TO THE
REGISTERED OWNER  OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON,
IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM

47

93



ANY BREACH BY THE ISSUER, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS
PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND
REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF
ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC
PERFORMANCE.

(D)  No default by the Issuer in observing or performing its obligations under this Section
shall comprise a breach of or default under the Resolution for purposes of any other provision of this
Resolution.  Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the
duties of the Issuer under federal and state securities laws.

(E)  The provisions of this Section may be amended by the Issuer from time to time to adapt
to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change
in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Issuer, but only if (1) the provisions of this
Section, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the
primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule since such offering as well as such changed circumstances and (2) either
(a) the registered owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any greater amount required
by any other provision of this Resolution that authorizes such an amendment) of the outstanding
Bonds consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is unaffiliated with the Issuer (such as
nationally recognized bond counsel) determined that such amendment will not materially impair the
interest of the registered owners and beneficial owners of the Bonds.  If the Issuer so amends the
provisions of this Section, it shall include with any amended financial information or operating data
next provided in accordance with subsection (b) of this Section an explanation, in narrative form, of
the reason for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information
or operating data so provided.  The Issuer may also amend or repeal the provisions of this continuing
disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provision of the Rule or a court of
final jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to the
extent that the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing
or selling Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds.

(b) Private Placements. If the Bonds are sold by private placement, the Pricing Officer
may agree to provide for an undertaking in accordance with the Rule or may agree to provide other
public information to the purchaser as may be necessary for the sale of the Bonds on the most
favorable terms to the Issuer. 

Section 32.  PUBLIC MEETING.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the
meeting at which this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time,
place, and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this
Resolution, was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

Section 32.  PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE ON BUSINESS DAYS. Except as provided
to the contrary in Section 6 hereof, whenever under the terms of this Resolution or the Bonds, the
performance date of any provision hereof or thereof, including the payment of principal of or interest

48

94



on the Bonds, shall occur on a day other than a Business Day, then the performance thereof, including
the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, need not be made on such day but may be
performed or paid, as the case may be, on the next succeeding Business Day with the same force and
effect as if made on the date of performance or payment. 

Section 33.  INDIVIDUALS NOT LIABLE.  All covenants, stipulations, obligations, and
agreements of the Issuer contained in this Resolution shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations,
obligations, and agreements of the Issuer and the Board to the full extent authorized or permitted by
the Constitution and laws of the State.  No covenant, stipulation, obligation, or agreement herein
contained shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation, or agreement of any member of
the Board or agent or employee of the Issuer in the individual capacity thereof and neither the
members of the Board nor any officer thereof shall be liable personally on Bonds when issued, or be
subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.

Section 34.  GOVERNING LAW.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State and the United States of America.

Section 35.  SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof
to any circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application
thereof to other circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and this governing body hereby declares
that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision.

 Section 36.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately after
its adoption.

49

95



May 25, 2021

Members of the Board of Trustees
Odessa Junior College District
201 W. University
Odessa, Texas 79764

Re: Proposed Odessa Junior College District Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2021

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The purpose of this engagement letter is to set forth certain matters concerning the services
we will perform as bond counsel to the Odessa Junior College District (the "Issuer") in connection
with the issuance of the above-referenced bonds (the "Bonds").  We understand that the Bonds are
being issued for the purpose of refunding on a taxable basis the Issuer's Consolidated Fund Revenue
Bonds, Series 2012 (the "Refunded Bonds") and to provide up to $35,000,000 in funds for the
acquisition, construction and equipment of a new health science building.  We understand that the
Bonds may be issued for both refunding and construction purposes or for only one of such purposes,
and that such determination will be made by the Issuer in conjunction with its financial advisor in
accordance with the resolution that will authorize the issuance of the Bonds (the "Resolution").

We also understand that the Bonds will be secured by a pledge of the Issuer's pledged funds
and pledged revenues, as provided in the Resolution.  We further understand that the Bonds will be
authorized to be sold by the Board of Trustees of the Issuer (the "Board") by delegation in
accordance with the Resolution to be adopted on the date hereof, which shall appoint the College
President or the Chief Financial Officer to act as a pricing officer (the "Pricing Officer") in the
manner set forth in Sections 130.123 and 130.125, Texas Education Code, as amended, and Chapter
1207, Texas Government Code, as amended, on behalf of the Issuer.  In accordance with such
delegation, the Pricing Officer will be authorized to negotiate the sale of the Bonds to a purchaser
or purchasers or to sell the Bonds by competitive offering to a purchaser or purchasers (collectively,
the "Underwriter").  The Bonds will be sold only in accordance with the direction of the Board as
set forth in Section 3 of the Resolution.  Each date on which Bonds are priced and the sale
negotiated, as aforesaid, is herein referred to as the "Sale Date." 

A.  THE FINANCING

As Bond Counsel to the Issuer, we would like for the Board to understand how the issuance
of the Bonds will be effected and the ramifications of the financing.  I will briefly describe the
procedures and certain applicable law that pertains to the issuance of the Bonds, below. However,
you should feel free to call me at any time to discuss any questions that you or your staff may have. 

(1) The Bonds issued for refunding purposes are being issued to provide debt service savings
with respect to the Issuer's future debt service payments.  You should discuss the full impact
of the debt service restructuring with RBC Capital Markets LLC, your financial advisor. 

(2) The Bonds will be "ordered to be issued" when and if the Board approves the Resolution. 
The Bond Resolution provides for certain terms of the Bonds, and delegates to the Pricing

96



Officer the authority to approve other terms of the Bonds, subject to the "parameters" set
forth in the Resolution.  Among the matters approved in the Resolution or delegated to the
Pricing Officer are:  (i) the terms of the Bonds, including whether the Bonds shall be issued
in one or more series and whether a series of Bonds shall be issued as obligations the interest
on which is subject to, or exempt from, federal income taxation, (ii) the principal
amortization schedule and interest rates and provision for certain of the Bonds to be issued
as current interest bonds that pay interest semiannually, and certain of the Bonds to be issued
as "zero coupon bonds" that accrete interest from the delivery date, but pay interest only at
maturity; (iii) the Issuer's commitment to levy its debt service tax each year in an amount
sufficient to pay the debt service on the Bonds; (iv) the sale of the Bonds to the Underwriter;
(v) the approval of this engagement letter; (vi) approval of a paying agent agreement to
whom you will make semiannual payments sufficient to pay the debt service on the Bonds;
(vii) instructions to the paying agent for the Refunded Bonds to give notice to the holders
of the Refunded Bonds that they are being called for redemption; (viii) approval of an
escrow agreement whereby the proceeds of the Bonds that are issued for refunding purposes
will be used to pay the debt service on the Refunded Bonds; (ix) covenants obligating the
Issuer to make periodic filings of operating and financial data in accordance with Rule
15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission; (x) whether the Bonds will be insured
by a policy of municipal bond insurance and whether a debt service reserve fund will be
funded for the benefit of the Bonds; and (xi) certain other covenants of the Issuer that are
designed to allow the Issuer to issue all or part of the Bonds as tax-exempt obligations.  As
you can see from the foregoing description, the Resolution is an omnibus undertaking of the
Issuer that is intended to provide for all actions and undertakings that are required for the
issuance of the Bonds.  There will be other certificates and letters that will be required to be
executed by officers of the Issuer on the Sale Date, but they all spring from, and are
authorized by, the Resolution. 

(3) As noted above, the Bonds will be sold to the Underwriter in accordance with the provisions
of the Bond Resolution and, in addition, the Underwriter will want the Issuer to sign a Bond
Purchase Contract or a Notice of Sale and Bid Form (the "Sale Contract") and/or issue
closing certificates on the Sale Date (the "Closing Certificates") that will set forth the terms
of the sale of the Bonds.  We will review the Sale Contract, and you should know that it will
commit the Issuer to sell the Bonds to the Underwriter at the price to be negotiated between
the Issuer and the Underwriter.  In addition, the Closing Certificates will contain
representations of the Issuer to the Underwriter to the effect that the Issuer is authorized to
issue the Bonds and that it has made full disclosure to the Underwriter and the bond
investors of all material information.  As a condition to the Underwriter's payment for the
Bonds, the Underwriter will require this firm to deliver our Bond Counsel opinion to them,
in which we will opine that the Bonds are valid obligations of the Issuer and that, assuming
ongoing compliance by the Issuer with the provisions of the Bond Resolution, the interest
on the Bonds will be exempt from federal income taxation.  The Sale Contract will also
require the delivery of an opinion of the Texas Attorney General approving the Bonds, as
is required by State law.  We will review the Issuer's representations and agreements in the
Sale Contract and the Closing Certificates to ensure that it is appropriate for the Issuer to
make the representations and agreements of the nature contained in those documents. 
However, if there are any unusual financial or legal circumstances affecting the Issuer that

Page 2

97



would make the covenants, representations or statements made by the Issuer in the Sale
Contract and the Closing Certificates untrue, you should let the Underwriter, your financial
advisor and/or the undersigned know about them as soon as possible.  

(4) You should know that the purchase price for the Bonds may be somewhat higher than the
principal amount of the Bonds.  This is because additional proceeds may be generated by the
sale of certain of the Bonds at a premium.  The premium, if any, may be used to fund the
escrow fund created by the escrow agreement, mentioned above, and to and to fund costs of
the construction project or to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds.  The premium allocable to
the refunding will be taken into account in determining the savings from the refunding,
which will be calculated by your financial advisor. 

(5) The Underwriter of the Bonds will offer the Bonds into the public debt markets prior to the
time that the Board meets to accept the Underwriter's offer for the Bonds.  Through this
process, the Bonds will be "priced" – i.e., interest rates and premiums or discounts, if any,
for the Bonds will be established.  On the Sale Date, the Pricing Officer will consider the
terms offered to the Issuer by the Underwriter based upon the market conditions and other
factors that determine interest rates and pricing information.  In connection with the offering
of the Bonds, the Pricing Officer will be authorized to approve an offering document called
an "Official Statement" that contains financial and operating data concerning the Issuer, and
information that describes the Bonds.  The Issuer is responsible for the information that is
contained in the Official Statement to the extent that it describes the Bonds and the Issuer. 
Some information in the Official Statement will be prepared by others, including the Texas
Education Agency and the Underwriter, and the Issuer is not responsible for that
information.  As your Bond Counsel, we will review the Official Statement to ensure that
the information describing the Bonds and the Resolution are correct.  As Bond Counsel, we
do not review other areas of the Official Statement.  If you know of any information that an
investor would consider to be material in order to make an investment decision, and that
information is omitted from, or incorrect in, the Official Statement, the Underwriter needs
to know, so that it can correct the Official Statement. 

B.  SCOPE OF ENGAGEMENT

In this engagement, we have performed, or expect to perform, the following duties: 

(1) Subject to the completion of proceedings to our satisfaction, render our legal opinion
(the "Bond Opinion"), regarding the validity and binding effect of the Bonds, the
source of payment and security for the Bonds, and the excludability of interest on the
Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, if applicable.

(2) Prepare and review documents necessary or appropriate to the authorization,
issuance and delivery of the Bonds, coordinate the authorization and execution of
such documents, and review enabling legislation.

(3) Assist the Issuer in seeking from other governmental authorities such approvals,
permissions and exemptions as we determine are necessary or appropriate in

Page 3

98



connection with the authorization, issuance and delivery of the Bonds, except that
we will not be responsible for any required federal or state securities law filings.  In
this connection, we particularly undertake to assist the Issuer in having the Bonds
approved by the Public Finance Division of the Office of the Texas Attorney
General, and, following such approval, registered by the Texas Comptroller of Public
Accounts.

(4) Review legal issues relating to the structure of the Bond issue.

(5) Review those sections of the Official Statement to be disseminated in connection
with the sale of the Bonds which describe the Bonds, the Resolution pursuant to
which they will be issued and the tax treatment of the interest on the Bonds for
purposes of federal income taxation. 

(6) If requested, assist the Issuer in presenting information to bond rating organizations
and the Texas Education Agency relating to legal issues affecting the issuance of the
Bonds.

(7) Draft the continuing disclosure undertaking of the Issuer.

Our Bond Opinion will be delivered by us on the date the Bonds are exchanged for their
purchase price (the "Closing"). The Issuer will be entitled to rely on our Bond Opinion. 

The Bond Opinion will be based on facts and law existing as of its date.  In rendering our
Bond Opinion, we will rely upon the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials
and other persons furnished to us without undertaking to verify the same by independent
investigation, and we will assume continuing compliance by the Issuer with applicable laws relating
to the Bonds.  During the course of this engagement, we will rely on you to provide us with
complete and timely information on all developments pertaining to any aspect of the Bonds and their
security.  We understand that you will direct members of your staff and other employees of the
Issuer to cooperate with us in this regard.

Our duties in this engagement are limited to those expressly set forth above.  Unless we are
separately engaged in writing to perform other services, our duties do not include any other services,
including the following:

(1) Except as described in sections A and B above, assisting in the preparation or review
of an official statement or any other disclosure document with respect to the Bonds,
assisting in the preparation of, or opining on, a continuing disclosure undertaking
pertaining to the Bonds or, after Closing, providing advice concerning any actions
necessary to assure compliance with any continuing disclosure undertaking, or, in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds, performing an independent investigation
to determine the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of any such document or
rendering advice that the official statement or other disclosure document does not
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

Page 4

99



necessary to make the statements contained therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading. 

(2) Preparing requests for tax rulings from the Internal Revenue Service, or no action
letters from the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

(3) Preparing state securities law memoranda or investment surveys with respect to the
Bonds. 

(4) Drafting state constitutional or legislative amendments. 

(5) Pursuing test cases or other litigation. 

(6) Making an investigation or expressing any view as to the creditworthiness of the
Issuer or the Bonds. 

(7) Representing the Issuer in Internal Revenue Service examinations or inquiries, or
Securities and Exchange Commission investigations. 

(8) After Closing, providing continuing advice to the Issuer or any other party
concerning any actions necessary to assure that interest paid on the Bonds will
continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes (e.g.,
our engagement does not include rebate calculations for the Bonds). 

(9) Negotiating the terms of, or opining as to, any investment contract.

(10) Addressing any other matter not specifically set forth above that is not required to
render our Bond Opinion. 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP

Upon execution of this engagement letter, the Issuer will be our client and an attorney-client
relationship will exist between us. We further assume that all other parties in this transaction
understand that we represent only the Issuer in this transaction, we are not counsel to any other
party, and we are not acting as an intermediary among the parties. Our services as bond counsel are
limited to those contracted for in this letter; the Issuer's execution of this engagement letter will
constitute an acknowledgment of those limitations.  Our representation of the Issuer will not affect,
however, our responsibility to render an objective Bond Opinion. 

Our representation of the Issuer and the attorney-client relationship created by this
engagement letter will be concluded upon issuance of the Bonds. Nevertheless, subsequent to
Closing, we will mail the appropriate Internal Revenue Service Form 8038 or Form 8081, if
required, prepare and distribute to the participants in the transaction a transcript of the proceedings
pertaining to the Bonds.

Page 5

100



CONFLICTS

As you are aware, our firm represents many political subdivisions and investment banking
firms, among others, who do business with political subdivisions. It is possible that during the time
that we are representing the Issuer, one or more of our present or future clients will have transactions
with the Issuer. It is also possible that we may be asked to represent, in an unrelated matter, one or
more of the entities involved in the issuance of the Bonds. We do not believe such representation,
if it occurs, will adversely affect our ability to represent you as provided in this letter, either because
such matters will be sufficiently different from the issuance of the Bonds so as to make such
representations not adverse to our representation of you, or because the potential for such adversity
is remote or minor and outweighed by the consideration that it is unlikely that advice given to the
other client will be relevant to any aspect of the issuance of the Bonds.  Execution of this letter will
signify the Issuer's consent to our representation of others consistent with the circumstances
described in this paragraph.

FIRM NOT A MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

As a consequence of the adoption of Rule 15Ba1-1 pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (the "Municipal Advisor Rule"), which has been promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission as a result of the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act"), we hereby inform the Issuer that we are not a
"Municipal Advisor" within the meaning of the Municipal Advisor Rule or the Dodd-Frank Act
(collectively, the "MA Rule").  In the course of performing our services as Bond Counsel in this
transaction, we may engage in analysis, discussion, negotiation, and advice tot he Issuer regarding
the legal ramifications of the structure, timing, terms, and other provisions of the financial
transaction that culminates with the planned issuance of the Bonds, and such services and advice
may be essential to the development of the plan of finance for the issuance of the Bonds.  In turn,
these services become, among other things, the basis for the transaction's basic legal documents, the
preparation and delivery of the official statement or any other disclosure document that describes
the material terms and provisions of the transaction, if an offering document is used in the offering
of the Bonds, the preparation of the various closing certificates that embody the terms and provisions
of this transaction and the preparation and delivery of our Bond Opinion.  Moreover, legal advice
and services of a traditional legal nature in the area of municipal finance inherently involve a
financial advice component; but we hereby advise the Issuer that while we have expertise with
respect to the legal aspects relating to the issuance of municipal securities, we are not "financial
advisors" or "financial experts" in a manner that would subject us to the provisions of the MA Rule. 
As Bond Counsel, we provide only legal advice, not purely financial advice that is not inherent in
our legal advice to the Issuer.  The Issuer should seek the advice of its financial advisor with respect
to the financial aspects of the issuance of the Bonds.  By signing this engagement letter, the Issuer
acknowledges receipt of this information, and evidences its understanding of the limitations of our
role to the Issuer as Bond Counsel with respect to the MA Rule, as discussed in this paragraph.

Page 6

101



NO ISRAEL BOYCOTT

We hereby represent that during the term of this agreement we do not, nor will we, boycott
Israel, in compliance with and within the meaning of 50 U.S.C. Section 4607 and Section 2270.002,
of the Texas Government Code. 

FEES

Based upon: (i) the terms, structure, size and schedule of the financing represented by the
Bonds; (ii) the duties we will undertake pursuant to this engagement letter; (iii) the time we
anticipate devoting to the financing; and (iv) the responsibilities we will assume in connection
therewith, our fee will be $7,500 for the first $1,000,000 in net proceeds of each series of Bonds
issued, plus $1 per $1,000 of net proceeds of the Bonds for all such amounts above $1,000,000.  Net
proceeds include any net original issue premium, less the amount of the underwriters' discount, plus
the principal amount of the Bonds (accrued interest is excluded from net proceeds).  The fee includes
our services rendered as Bond Counsel, but does not include client charges made or incurred on your
behalf, such as travel costs, photocopying, deliveries, long distance telephone charges, telecopier
charges, computer-assisted research and other expenses. 

RECORDS

After the transaction has closed, you will receive from us a transcript of proceedings that
contain the primary financing and closing documents related to the transaction.  At your request,
papers and property furnished by you, and work product belonging to you and to which you are
entitled, will be returned promptly.  We may have copies of any and all documents made for our files
at our sole cost and expense, to be retained by us.  For various reasons, including the minimization
of unnecessary storage expenses, we reserve the right to dispose of any documents or other materials
retained by us after the closing of each transaction. 

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION AND STORAGE

In the interest of facilitating our services to you, we may send documents, information or
data electronically or via the Internet or store electronic documents or data via computer software
applications hosted remotely or utilize cloud-based storage.  Your confidential electronic documents
or data may be transmitted or stored using these methods.  We may use third party service providers
to store or transmit these documents or data.  In using these electronic communication and storage
methods, we employ reasonable efforts to keep such communications, documents and data secure
in accordance with our obligations under applicable laws, regulations, and professional standards;
however, you recognize and accept that we have no control over the unauthorized interception or
breach of any communications, documents or data once it has been transmitted or if it has been
subject to unauthorized access while stored, notwithstanding all reasonable security measures
employed by us or by our third party vendors.  By your acceptance of this letter, you consent to our
use of these electronic devices and applications and submission of confidential client information
to or through third party service providers during this engagement.

Page 7

102



ACCEPTANCE OF TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT

If the foregoing terms are acceptable to you, please so indicate by returning the enclosed
copy of this engagement letter dated and signed by an authorized officer, retaining the original for
your files.  We look forward to working with you. 

Respectfully yours,

Accepted and Approved 

Odessa Junior College District

By:                                                   
Its: Chair, Board of Trustees
Date: May 25, 2021

Page 8103



ODESSA COLLEGE
BUDGET COMPARISON STATEMENT 

CURRENT UNRESTRICTED INCOME & EXPENDITURES
April 30, 2021 and 2020

THROUGH TOTAL PERCENT THROUGH TOTAL PERCENT

APRIL BUDGET OF APRIL BUDGET OF

2021 2020-2021 BUDGET 2020 2019-2020 BUDGET

Revenues:
State Appropriation 5,979,264      9,641,570     62.0% 5,979,314      9,641,570     62.0%
Ad Valorem Taxes 24,489,300    25,730,000   95.2% 24,523,656    25,705,000   95.4%
Tuition and Fees - Credit 12,463,379    11,282,133   110.5% 11,859,448    11,141,892   106.4%
Tuition and Fees - Non Credit 1,056,791      1,728,521     61.1% 961,652         1,888,367     50.9%
Federal Grants & Contracts 9,545             13,000          73.4% 8,355             13,000          64.3%
Other Income 408,606         1,108,864     36.8% 546,228         1,191,769     45.8%
Gift Income 42,428           52,000          81.6% 82,291           78,756          104.5%
Investment Income 98,100           330,000        29.7% 255,245         425,000        60.1%
Total Revenues 44,547,413    49,886,088   89.3% 44,216,189    50,085,354   88.3%

Salaries and Benefits:
General Administration 1,359,741      2,189,383     62.1% 1,246,308      2,022,316     61.6%
Student Services 1,296,695      2,225,429     58.3% 1,622,702      2,709,174     59.9%
General Institutional 1,863,436      3,430,278     54.3% 1,831,184      3,246,450     56.4%
Instruction 8,690,696      13,679,493   63.5% 8,538,624      13,363,338   63.9%
Instructional Support 2,319,949      3,927,669     59.1% 2,076,859      3,462,730     60.0%
Public Service 361,726         697,333        51.9% 397,962         731,606        54.4%
Physical Plant 705,128         1,093,098     64.5% 698,450         1,115,925     62.6%
Staff Benefits 3,766,819      5,815,375     64.8% 3,529,504      5,592,480     63.1%
    Total Payroll 20,364,190    33,058,058   61.6% 19,941,593    32,244,019   61.8%

Other Operating Expenditures:
General Administration 208,139         412,912        50.4% 263,989         344,467        76.6%
Student Services 358,104         585,613        61.2% 387,947         533,792        72.7%
General Institutional 2,376,970      4,085,301     58.2% 2,422,920      3,918,962     61.8%
Instruction 306,584         1,002,715     30.6% 498,021         1,146,707     43.4%
Instructional Support 338,974         584,290        58.0% 382,306         626,942        61.0%
Public Service 78,325           138,198        56.7% 105,867         166,723        63.5%
Physical Plant Operations 1,526,727      1,854,594     82.3% 1,397,391      1,785,904     78.2%
Utilities 754,315         1,127,783     66.9% 698,931         1,115,750     62.6%
Scholarships & Allowances 1,215,486      1,659,000     73.3% 1,454,514      1,605,000     90.6%

7,163,624      11,450,406   62.6% 7,611,886      11,244,247   67.7%

Transfers In:
Bookstore Profit (Loss) 48                  60,000          0.1% (404)               60,000          -0.7%
OER Reserve Fund 66,667           100,000        66.7% 66,667           100,000        66.7%
Other Auxiliary Profit (Loss) (85,901)          (455,126)       n/a 2,609             (117,730)       n/a
Investment Income - Plant Funds -                     20,000          0.0% 38,264           20,000          191.3%
   Total Transfers In (19,186)          (275,126)       7.0% 107,136         62,270          172.1%

Transfers Out:
For Revenue Bond Debt Service -                     -                    n/a -                     -                    n/a
Tuition for TPEG Scholarships 533,255         465,000        114.7% 474,750         465,000        102.1%
To Technology Replacement Fund 110,374         450,000        24.5% 168,552         600,000        28.1%
To Plant Renew/Replace Fund 208,685         600,000        34.8% 522,779         750,000        69.7%
To Construction Funds 1,556,667      2,335,000     66.7% 2,300,000      3,450,000     66.7%
Athletics Subsidy 881,286         1,264,934     69.7% 1,003,685      1,357,213     74.0%
Other Transfers -                     (12,436)         0.0% -                     37,145          0.0%
   Total Transfers Out 3,290,267      5,102,498     64.5% 4,469,766      6,659,358     67.1%

Excess of Revenues over
Expenditures and Transfers 13,710,146    -                    12,300,080    -                    

104



ODESSA COLLEGE
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

May 25, 2021

GENERAL CONTINGENCY EXPENDITURES  (11-10390-5388)
Original Budget, September 1, 2020 $ 550,000       

Proposed Adjustments, May 25, 2021 ** (11,967)

Balance Remaining for General Contingencies $ 538,033       

INCREASES (DECREASES) IN INCOME BUDGETS

None -               

$ -               

$ -               
INCREASES (DECREASES) IN EXPENDITURE BUDGETS

Bus Repairs
11 - 10359 - 5407 Transportation Contract Services 11,967         
11 - 10390 - 5388 General Contingency Contingent Expenditures ** (11,967)       

$ -               

105



04/28/2021 Great Western Dining Meal Charges (Week ending 04/21/2021) $13,643.74
04/28/2021 Ron Osborn Inc. Abatement and Demolition of 203 Cummings $30,795.00
04/28/2021 Music & Arts Professional Timpani Set (Rea Grant Funded) $12,738.19
05/03/2021 OC PETTY CASH All In Cash Awards $27,800.00
05/03/2021 Laerdal Medical Corp Basic Skills Manikin for Nursing (Perkins Funded Grant) $12,327.51
05/05/2021 Great Western Dining Meal Charges (Week ending 04/28/2021) $13,100.96
05/05/2021 GCA Services Group Custodial Services - April $67,454.70
05/05/2021 Sewell Ford Ford Mustang - Drive to Success $30,859.75
05/05/2021 Seminole I.S.D. Dual Credit Instruction $12,042.00
05/06/2021 SKC Communication Products, LLC. Zant Room and ET Saulsury Room Video Upgrades (Cares Grant Funded) $141,048.05
05/06/2021 City of Odessa Water & Sewer Utilities - April $16,266.23
05/12/2021 ATI Nursing practice exam software (Funded by student fees) $19,566.60
05/12/2021 Great Western Dining Meal Charges (Week ending 05/05/2021) $13,128.05
05/12/2021 Atmos Energy Gas Utilities - April $10,810.28
05/12/2021 G & G Construction Freeze/Water Damage to Century Commons (Insurance Claim) $54,675.00
05/19/2021 Premier Truck Group of Odessa Bus Repairs $11,966.93
05/19/2021 ATI Nursing practice exam software (Funded by student fees) $37,176.60
05/19/2021 Signal Vine, Inc. Student Text Messaging Platform $35,850.00
05/19/2021 Daco Fire & Safety Equipment  Fire Tech bunker gear $10,641.00
05/19/2021 NRG Energy, Inc. Electric Utilities - April $45,409.98

ODESSA COLLEGE
EXPENDITURE VOUCHERS EXCEEDING $10,000

April 27, 2021 - May 20, 2021

106



Available Funds

FY19‐20  Allocated funds from Budget 1,300,000.00$                                  

FY20‐21  Allocated funds from Budget 2,185,000.00$                                  

Board Designated 25% from FY19 Audit 356,642.00$                                     

Board Designated 25% from FY20 Audit 1,209,036.00$                                  

Donations Pledged 17,321,500.00$                               

Foundation Donations Received 900,000.00$                                     

23,272,178.00$                               

Expensed Funds

Admin Fees 16,427.50$                                       

Terrace Appartments 894,662.29$                                     

Health Science Building 78,232.50$                                       

RA Pavilion 4,857.50$                                          

994,179.79$                                     

CK DATE PAYEE DESCRIPTION CURRENT Transfers TOTAL

Admin Fees

Previous Expenditures 16,427.50$            

-                        
Total Expenditures to Date 16,427.50$            

Terrace Appartments

Previous Expenditures 863,567.29$          

04/20/2021 Vanco Insulation Abatement Inc Fence Rental 300.00         
04/22/2021 Ron Osborn Inc. Abatement & Demo Cummins 30,795.00    31,095.00              

Total Expenditures to Date 894,662.29$          

Health Science Building

Previous Expenditures 78,232.50$            

-                        
Total Expenditures to Date 78,232.50$            

RA Pavilion 

Previous Expenditures 4,857.50$              

-                        
Total Expenditures to Date 4,857.50$              

VISION 2030  SUMMARY TO DATE
Through 05/20/2021

VISION 2030 CONSTRUCTION EXPENDITURES
April 27, 2021  - May 20, 2021

107



NAMING AGREEMENT 

This Naming Agreement (“Agreement”), effective as of May 25, 2021 (“Effective Date”), is made 

and entered into by and between Odessa Regional Medical Center, whose address is 501 East 

Sixth Street, Odessa, Texas 79761 (“Donor”) and Odessa College District (“College”). Based upon 

the Recitals below, and in consideration of the mutual promises and benefits hereunder, the 

parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

RECITALS 

Donor wishes to make a Contribution to the College for the use and benefit of the College as set 

forth in this Agreement. 

In consideration for the Contribution, the Odessa College District Board of Trustees (“Board”) 

desires to accept such Contribution on behalf of the College, subject to the terms and conditions 

set forth in this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

1. Contribution. Donor hereby pledges to the College, for the purpose of constructing a 

health sciences building on the campus of the College, the following Contribution: One 

Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) (“Contribution”). 

 

2. Payment of the Contribution. Except as hereinafter specified, the Contribution is an 

irrevocable promise to make payments to the College over a period of ten (10) years. 

Payments will begin upon the execution of this Agreement with an initial payment of One 

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) on or before November 1, 2021, and will 

continue annually thereafter on the anniversary of the initial payment according to the 

following schedule: 

 

Amount of Payment by Donor  Due Date 

$100,000     November 1, 2022 

$100,000     November 1, 2023 

$100,000     November 1, 2024 

$100,000     November 1, 2025 

$100,000     November 1, 2026 

$100,000     November 1, 2027 

$100,000     November 1, 2028 

$100,000     November 1, 2029 

$100,000     November 1, 2030 

 

Donor may accelerate the payment of any or all of this pledge at any time in Donor’s 

discretion so long as the cumulative total of all Contribution payments meets the 

foregoing schedule. Payments shall be paid by Donor to College via check, electronic 

108



funds transfer, or other methods acceptable to Donor and the College. It is understood 

and agreed that the Contribution by Donor is specifically conditioned upon the 

construction of a health sciences building on the campus of the College, and in the event 

the building is not constructed substantially in accordance with the plans furnished to 

Donor by College, the obligations of Donor hereunder shall terminate and College shall 

refund to Donor any portion of the Contribution previously paid to the College. The 

College may make reasonable modifications to the plans for the facility. Modification to 

the plans for the facility shall be furnished to Donor by the College. 

 

3. Acknowledgement. In consideration for the Contribution, the College will acknowledge 

the Contribution by naming the (to be constructed) third floor “Odessa Regional Medical 

Center Instruction Floor” (“Facility”) for a period of 75 years (the “Naming Rights Period”). 

The College may in its sole discretion agree to extend the Naming Rights Period. The 

College will acknowledge the Contribution by making reasonable efforts to provide the 

following: 

a. Donor name will be prominently placed as visitors enter the third floor and 
branding will be included in each of the nine classrooms and three computer labs 
on the floor 

b. Donor leadership will have the opportunity to teach and mentor students taking 
classes in the facility at times and places that are agreed upon with the College 

c. Donor may schedule with College time in the facility learning and meeting space 
at no charge 

d. Donor may have an on-site presence, verbal recognition, and brand inclusion in 
materials for any grand opening events tied to the facility or the floor’s opening  

e. Donor will receive co-marketing opportunities such as video, social media and 
media 

f. Donor will receive branding opportunity on School of Health Sciences webpage 
g. Donor may partner with the College on healthcare initiatives, services and 

education for students and employees 
h. Donor may receive access to College students and employees for events tied to 

health sciences programs, such as health fairs, orientation and admissions events 
 

 

4. Modification of Naming.  If during the useful life of the Facility, the Facility is transferred 

or conveyed from the College; closed, deconstructed, destroyed or severely damaged; 

significantly renovated, upgraded, modified, relocated, or replaced at a cost equal to or 

exceeding the Contribution,  then the Naming will cease. In such event, however, the 

Donor, if available, and in consultation with and as mutually agreed by the Board and 

College, will have the right, for no additional payment, to have another available and 

equivalent College facility named after the Donor for the remainder of the Naming Rights 

Period. 

109



 

5. Termination of Naming. In addition to any rights and remedies available at law, the Board 

may terminate this Agreement and all rights and benefits of the Donor hereunder, 

including terminating the Naming: 

a.  In the event of any default in payment of the Contribution as provided in this 

Agreement, or 

b. In the unlikely event the Board determines in its reasonable and good faith opinion 

that circumstances have changed, due to Donor’s own acts and/or omissions, such 

that the Naming chosen by the Donor would adversely impact the reputation, 

image, mission or integrity of the College, or of the Board in the event of a 

continued association with Donor and the continuation of the Naming provided 

for herein.  

 

Upon any such termination of this Agreement before all payments of the Contribution are 

made, the Board, the College and the Donor shall have no further obligation or liability to 

each other and the College shall be required to return any portion of the Contribution 

already paid. However, notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, in the event of a 

termination of this Agreement because of a default in payment of the Contribution by 

Donor, the College shall not be required to return any portion of the Contribution already 

paid. 

 

6. Publicity. For purpose of publicizing the Contribution and the Naming, College will have 

the right, at times and places reasonably acceptable to Donor, without charge, to 

photograph the Donor and use the names, likenesses, and images of the Donor in 

photographic, audiovisual, digital or any other form of medium (“Media Materials”) and 

to use, reproduce, distribute, exhibit, and publish the Media Materials in any manner and 

in whole or in part, including in brochures, website postings, information and marketing 

materials, and reports and publications describing College’s development and business 

activities. 

  

Likewise, for purposes of publicizing the Contribution and the Naming Donor or Donor’s 

affiliated entities or businesses will have the right, at times and places reasonably 

acceptable to College, without charge, to photograph the Wood Health Sciences Building 

and use the names, likenesses, and image of the College in photographic, audiovisual, 

digital or any other form of medium (the “Media Materials”) and to use, reproduce, 

distribute, exhibit, and publish the Media Materials in any manner and in whole or in part, 

including in brochures, website postings, informational and marketing materials, and 

reports and publications describing Donor and Donor’s affiliated entities and business 

activities. 

 

110



7. Assignment. This Agreement and the rights and benefits hereunder may not be assigned 

by either party without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall 

be in the sole and absolute discretion of the non-assigning party. 

 

8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with 

regard to the matters referred to herein, and supersedes all prior oral and written 

agreement, if any, of the parties in respect hereto. The captions and terms used in this 

Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define limit, or otherwise describe the 

scope or intent of this Agreement, or any provision hereof, or in any way affect the 

interpretation of this Agreement.  

 

9. Successors in Interest. This Agreement will be binding on and inure to the benefit of the 

parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 

successors and assigns, as permitted by this Agreement. 

 

10. Waiver. A breach of this Agreement may be waived only by a written waiver signed by the 

party granting the waiver.  A waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall not operate nor 

be construed as a waiver of any other similar, prior, or subsequent breach of this 

Agreement. 

 

11. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended or modified only in writing and signed by 

both Donor and College. Any amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be subject 

to Paragraph 13 below. 

 

12. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. Subject to the sovereign immunity of the 

State of Texas and Odessa College District, any legal proceeding brought in connection with 

disputes relating to or arising out of this Agreement will be filed and heard in Ector County, 

Texas, and Donor waives any objection that it might raise to such venue and any right it 

may have to claim that such venue is inconvenient. 

 

13. Board of Trustees Approval. This Agreement and any amendment or modifications thereto, 

and the recognition and naming provided for herein, are subject to the approval by the Board 

and this Agreement will not be effective unless and until approved by the Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

111



ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Stacey Brown, Chief Executive Officer  Date 

Odessa Regional Medical Center 

 

 

________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Tommy Clark, President    Date 

Board of Trustees 

Odessa College 

 

________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Gregory D. Williams, President   Date 

Odessa College 

 

112

slg07
Typewritten text
May 20, 2021



Letter of Agreement 
Between 

Odessa College Foundation, Incorporated 
And 

Odessa College 
 
 

Odessa College Foundation, Incorporated (the Foundation), is a 501(c)(3) organization.  The 
Foundation is charitable in nature, and was established to carry out a three-fold mission:  1) to secure 
donations for scholarship assistance to Odessa College, (the College) through the annual Campaign  
and the Leave-A-Legacy Campaign;  2) to secure donations to the College that foster the continuation  
and development of projects and training programs;  and 3) to unify the community in promoting  
philanthropy for Higher Education at Odessa College.  The Foundation is a separate organization that  
maintains its identification with Odessa College through its use of logos and other symbols of the College. 
 
The College maintains control of the Foundation.  College Trustees may remove a Foundation board 
member at any time, with or without cause.  The Executive Director, an employee of Odessa College, 
shall administer the affairs of the Foundation.  The By-Laws of the Odessa College Foundation, Incorporated, 
define the liabilities and indemnifications of the Foundation’s Board of Directors.  In addition, the By-Laws  
of the Odessa College Foundation, Incorporated, describe the relationship between the Foundation and  
Odessa College as exclusively educational. 
 
The President of Odessa College is an ad hoc member of the Foundation’s Board of Directors and as 
such has access to the foundation’s financial statements and audits.  The President and the Board of 
Trustees of Odessa College, as well as the Executive Director of the Foundation and the Foundation’s 
Board of Directors work together to establish goals and objectives that meet the needs of the College 
and the students enrolled there. 
 
The relationship between the College and the Foundation is consistent with the Foundation Mission 
Statement listed above. 
 
Neither Odessa College, nor any official thereof, nor any Director, Officer or Agent of this Corporation, 
shall ever be personally liable for any debt, or other obligation, of the Corporation. 
 
Supporting documents: 
 
Odessa College Foundation By-Laws 
Odessa College Foundation Articles of Incorporation 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________       _____________________________________________ 
David Boutin, President                           Date                    Tommy Clark                                               Date 
Odessa College Foundation, Incorporated       Odessa College Board of Trustees 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                             Revised May 13, 2021 

113



5/5/2021

To: Odessa College Board of Trustees, Dr. Gregory Williams

From: Tommy Clark, 2021 Board Chair / Precinct 9 Board member

Re: Resignation

Dear Odessa College Board Members & Dr. Greg Williams,

After much consideration and prayer, I have decided to resign my position as Odessa College Board of 
Trustee, Precinct 9.

I want to thank all of the present and past board members for accepting me onto what I consider one of 
the best boards I have ever been a part of. I am proud of the work we have done, the things we have 
accomplished and the manner in which we did so.

Gary Johnson, Bruce Shearer and Dr. Tara Deaver were so patient with me during my early years and are 
some of the best people I know. I am honored to call these fine people my friends.

I also want to thank Dr. Greg Williams for his leadership during my time on this board. While we didn’t 
always agree on every issue, we both found ways to compromise and make the decisions that were best 
for Odessa College and our OC family. I truly believe we were able to do so because of the respect we 
have for one another.

Dr. Williams and his admin team deserve all of the credit for the growth of Odessa College and the 
amazing things that will continue to happen under their guidance and will without a doubt keep making 
miracles a reality for the students of Odessa College moving forward.

I am most proud of the fact that the students of Odessa College and citizens Odessa Texas were always 
our point of emphasis when making decisions for Odessa College.

It has truly been an amazing learning experience over the past 9 years and one that will forever impact 
my life.

My resignation will be effective May 31, 2021 at which time an appointee would be needed to fill 
Precinct 9.

Respectfully submitted,

Tommy Clark

Odessa College Board Chair

114



115


	Agenda
	1. Call to Order - Mr. Tommy Clark
	2. Pledge of Allegiance: United States & Texas - Mr. Tommy Clark
	3. Introduce New Employees - Ms. Lindsey Bryant
	4. Approval of Minutes of Regular Meeting of April 27, 2021 - Mr. Tommy Clark
	April 27 21.docx

	5. Action Items:
	5.A. Committee Reports
	5.A.1. Property Committee - Dr. Tara Deaver
	5.A.1.a. Report on Approval of Systech Bid
	Systech

	5.A.1.b. Consider and Approve Bid for Food Service Vendor
	RFP-21-007-Food Service Operation Property Committee

	5.A.1.c. Consider and Approve Purchase of Portable Buildings
	RFP-21-008-Modular Classroom Property Committee

	5.A.1.d. Request for Consent from Board of Trustees of OJCD to Sell Property for Less than Market Value Specified in the Judgement of Foreclosure and Also Less than the Amount of Judgments Against the Property.
	Request to Sell property for less than market value


	5.A.2. Finance Committee - Mr. Gary Johnson
	5.A.2.a. Consider and Approve Authorized Investment Business Organizations
	Authorized Investment Business Org May 2021

	5.A.2.b. Review Plan of Finance Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds
	2021-05-18 Odessa POF

	5.A.2.c.  Review and Approve Parameters Resolution Authorizing Issuance of Consolidated Fund Revenue Bonds, appointing a representative of the District and delegating to the representative certain matters with respect to the sale of the Bonds and the offering documents, and enacting other provisions relating to the issuance and sale of the Bonds.
	Resolution (delegation for 5-25 mtg)
	Bond counsel engagement letter



	5.B. Monthly Financial Statements & Budget Amendments - Ms. Brandy Ham
	Budget Comparison St-April 30
	Budget Adjustments - May 25
	Vouchers Exceeding $10,000
	Vision 2030 Summary

	5.C. Recommendation for Appointment of Independent Auditors- Ms. Brandy Ham
	5.D. Wood Health Sciences Building Naming agreements - Jacqui Gore
	5.D.1. Odessa Regional Medical Center
	Health Sciences Gift Agreement - Odessa Regional Medical Center - May 20 2021

	5.D.2. Grow Odessa

	5.E. OC Foundation Letter of Agreement - Jacqui Gore
	Letter of Agreement between Foundation and OC (002)

	5.F. Reappointment of College Attorney- Dr. Gregory Williams
	5.G. Accept Resignation of Board Member Tommy Clark- Dr. Gregory Williams
	Odessa College Board Resignation

	5.H. Accept Resignation of Board Member Neil Grape- Dr. Gregory Williams
	Letter of resignation Grape

	5.I. Consider and Approve Appointment of Hortencia DelBosque to the Unexpired Term, Place 2
	5.J. Consider and Approve Appointment of Montie Garner to the Unexpired Term, Place 6
	5.K. Reorganization of the Board- Mr. Tommy Clark

	6. Informational Items:
	6.A. Education Report - Employee of Excellence Award Winners - Ms. Kim McKay
	6.B. Vision 2030 Update- Mr. Ken Zartner
	6.C. Institutional Effectiveness Report - Dr. Janice Hicks
	6.D. President's Report - Dr. Gregory Williams
	6.D.1. Record Graduation May 7 and 8
	6.D.2. Virtual Invasion
	6.D.3. Grand Opening of the Pantry Gardens
	6.D.4. Dr. Motamedi appointed to serve on the new THECB Transfer Advisory Committee
	6.D.5. Aspen Prize 2021
	6.D.6. Gary Johnson celebrates 30 years of serving as an Odessa College Board of Trustee


	7. Adjournment - Mr. Tommy Clark

